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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Dr. James "Spike" Harris, Mayor 
And the Honorable Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
and each major fund, of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana (the Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Qualified Opinion on the General Fund 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 
section of our report, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fmancial 
position of the General Fund of the Town, as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in financial position thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Unmodified Opinions on Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, the Special Revenue Funds (Street Ad 
Valorem Tax Fund, Fire Ad Valorem Tax Fund, Street Sales Tax Fund, American Rescue Plan Act Fund, and the 
LCDBG Fund), and the Utility Enterprise Fund. 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
fmancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the Special Revenue Funds (Street Ad 
Valorem Tax Fund, Fire Ad Valorem Tax Fund, Street Sales Tax Fund, American Rescue Plan Act Fund, and the 
LCDBG Fund), and the Utility Enterprise Fund, of the Town, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in 
fmancial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide. Our responsibilities under those standards 
and the Guide are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified and unmodified audit opinions. 

Matter Giving Rise to the Qualified Opinion on the General Fund 

Management presented operating transfers between funds that do not balance. Accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) require that interfund transfers be recorded when there is a flow of 
assets without equivalent flow of assets in return and without a requirement for repayment. GAAP requires transfers 
to be reported in the fund financial statements as other fmancing sources and uses. The sum of transfers out should 
agree to the sum of transfers in. Operating transfers exceed operating transfers out by $289,950. The effect on 
revenues and expenditures could not be determined. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fmancial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the fmancial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern for 
twelve months beyond the fmancial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
intemal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, 
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the fmancial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 

2 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
information (pages 49-52), schedules of employer's proportionate share of net pension liability (pages 53-55), and the 
schedules of employer contributions to pension plans (pages 56-58), be presented to supplement the basic fmancial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
fmancial reporting for placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Management has omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Statement of Cash Flows that accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic fmancial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic 
fmancial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Supplementmy Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively comprise the 
Town's basic fmancial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Compensation Paid to Councilpersons and the 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and other Payments to Agency Head are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic fmancial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic fmancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements or to 
the basic fmancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Compensation Paid to 
Councilpersons and the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and other Payments to Agency Head are fairly stated, in 
all material respects, in relation to the basic fmancial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 2023, on our 
consideration of the Town's internal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control over fmancial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Town's internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

&WA & Sae( 24,12, ..eze 
Ruston, Louisiana 

September 30, 2023 

3 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 

Primary Government 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

ASSETS 

   

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,410,004 466,670 $ 1,876,674 
Savings accounts 

 

335,032 335,032 
Receivables 438,460 178,275 616,735 
Internal balances (25,483) 25,484 1 
Inventoiy of materials and supplies 85,752 

 

85,75? 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,071,874 5,942,402 8,014,276 
TOTAL ASSETS 3,980,608 6,947,863 10,928,471 

DEILRRED OUTFLOWS 

   

Deferred charges 528,233 37,685 565,918 

LIABILITIES 

   

Accounts, salaries, and other current payables 378,928 64,7()4 443,632 
Noncurrent liabilities 139,360 1,938,219 2,077,579 
Deposits 

 

228,911 228,911 
Net pension obligation 1,271,583 369,217 1,640,800 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,789,871 2,601,051 4,390,922 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 

   

Deferred revenue - unearned 1,305,556 124,756 1,430,312 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment in capital assets 1,932,514 4,004,184 5,936,698 
Restricted 748,979 215,196 964,175 
Unrestricted (1,268,080) 40,362 (1,227,719) 
TOTAL NET POSITION S 1,413,413 $ 4,259,741 $ 5,673,154 

4 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVI1WS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 

PROGRAM REVENUES NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

TOTAL 

OPERATING CAPITAL 

CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND 

EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS 

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITWS ACTIVITIES 

Governmental activities: 

     

General government $ 1,198,060 $ 233,344 $ 364,101 $ (600.615) 

 

$ (600,615) 

Public safety 1,043,150 50,750 

 

(992,400) 

 

(992,400) 

Highways and streets 1,109,565 

 

(1,109,565) 

 

(1,109,565) 

Sanitation 257,537 260,975 521,608 525,046 

 

525,046 

Health and welfare 412 

 

(412) 

 

(412) 

Recreation 10,189 2,650 

 

(7,539) 

 

(7,539) 

Transportation 146,770 562 128,325 (17,884) 

 

(17,884) 

Interest expense 4,114 

 

(4,114) 

 

(4,114) 

Total govermnental activities 3,769,797 548,280 364,101 649,933 (2,207,483) 

 

(2,207,483) 

Business-type activities: 

     

Sanitation 479,723 444,723 44,334 

  

9,334 9,334 

Water systeln 1,107,856 630,402 

  

(477,454) (477,454) 

Interest expense 88,132 

  

(88,132) (88,132) 

Total business-type activities 1,675,710 1,075,124 44,334 

  

(556,252) (556,252) 

Total primary govermnent S 5,445,507 $ 1,623,405 408,435 S 649,933 (2,207,483) (556,252) (2,763,735) 

 

General revenues: 

     

Property taxes 

 

378,512 

 

378,512 

 

Sales and use taxes 

 

2,189,673 

 

2,189,673 

 

Other taxes 

 

178,262 

 

178,262 

 

Unrestricted invesunent earnings 

 

167 12 179 

 

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 

 

1,806 

 

1.806 

 

Contributions and donations 

 

15,660 

 

15,660 

 

Other 

 

140,518 79,349 219,867 

 

Transfers 

 

(37,632) 327,582 289,950 

 

Total general revenues and transfers 

 

2,866,966 406,943 3,273,910 

 

Change in net position 

 

659,483 (149,309) 510,175 

 

Net position at beginning of year 

 

753,930 4,409,050 5,162,980 

 

Net position at end of year 

 

$ 1,413,413 4,259,741 $ 5,673,155 

ne accompanying notes are an integral part ot Mese tinancial statements. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 

General 

Street 

Ad Valorem 

Fire 

Ad Valorem 

Street 

Sales Tax 

American 

Rescue 

Plan LCDBG 

Total 

Governmental 

Funds 

ASSETS 

      

Cash and cash equiwdents 808,589 $ 1,000 S 822 $599.594 

 

$ - $ 1,410,004 

Receivables, net 114.071 - 

 

101,623 

 

222.766 438.460 

Inventory - gas and oil 85.751 

   

- - 85.752 

Due from other funds - 

 

135,692 527,399 - 663,091 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,008,412 $ 1,000 S 822 $836,908 $ 527,399 $222,766 $ 2,597,307 

LIABILIIIIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES 

      

Liabilities: 

      

CiuTent Liabilities: 

      

Accounts, salaries. and other current 

payables 156,162 $ 

   

$222,766 378.928 

Due to other fwids 688,574 

     

688.574 

Total liabilities 844,736 

    

222,766 1,067,502 

Deferred inflows: 

      

Unearned 

   

527,399 

 

527,399 

Fluid balances: 

      

Restricted fund balances - 1.000 822 836,907 (0) 

 

838,730 

Unassigned 163.676 

     

163,676 

Total fund balances 163,676 1,000 822 836,907 (0) 

 

1,002,406 

TOTAL LIABILI I ILS, DEFERRED INFLOWS. 

      

AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,008.413 1.000 S 822 $836,907 $ 527.399 $222,766 $ 2,597.3(17 

6 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STAILMENT OF NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 1,002,406 

Total Net Position reported for Liovernmental activities 
in the Statement of Net Position :are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therfore, are not reported in governmental funds. net of depreciation. 2,071,874 

Some of the Town's revenues are not mailable to pay for the current 
period's expenditures and are not reported in the funds. 527,399 

Lono,-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore. are not reported in the goveriunental funds: 

Noncurrent portion of lontz-terrn liabilities (1,410.943 ) 

Deferred outflows of resources 528,233 

Deferred inflows of resources (1,305,556) 

Net Position $ 1,413,413 

7 
The accompanying notes are a n egral part of these tinancial staternents. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 

General 

Street 

Ad Valorem 

Fire 

Ad Valorem 

 

Street 

Sales Tax 

American 

Rescue 

Plan LCDBG 

Total 

Governmental 

Funds 

REVENUES 

Taxes: 

        

Ad ‘nlorein S 163,699 107,406 107,406 S 

 

$ $ $ 378,512 

Sales and use 1.098.921 

   

1,090,753 

  

2,189,673 

Other taxes 

        

Franchise 142,452 

      

142,452 

Other taxes 35,811 

      

35,811 

Licenses and permits: 

        

Business licenses and permits 205,141 

      

205,141 

Other licenses and perinits 17,169 

      

17,169 

Intergovernmental: 

        

Federal grants 128,325 

    

299,776 521.108 949,209 

State grants 64,825 

      

64,825 

Local governinent payment in lieu of taxes 5,873 

      

5,873 

Cliarges for services 288,229 

      

288,229 

Fines 2,758 

      

2,758 

Investment earnings 167 

      

167 

Rents and royalties 34,983 

      

34,983 

Contributions and donations from private 

sources 15,660 

      

15,660 

Other revenues 49,129 

 

415 

    

49.544 

Total revenues 2,253,143 107.406 107,821 

 

1.090.753 299.776 521,108 4,380,007 

8 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

       

General government 832,635 (160) 

  

299,776 

 

1,132,251 

Public safety 1,043,150 

     

1,043,150 

Highways and streets 948,098 

     

948,098 

Sanitation 257,537 

     

257,537 

Health 412 

     

412 

Recreation 10,189 

     

10,189 

Airport transportation 146,770 

     

146,770 

Debt service 48,793 

     

48,793 

Capital outlay 104,173 

    

521,108 625,281 

Total expenditures 3,391,757 (160) 

  

299,776 521,108 4,212,481 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

       

OVER EXPENDITURES (1,138,614) 107,566 107,821 1,090,753 (0) 

 

167,526 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

       

1nterfund transfers in 2,204,729 (160) 

    

2,204,569 

Proceeds of general capital asset disposals 1,806 

     

1,806 

Proceeds from insurance 88,321 

     

88,321 

Interfwid transfers out (1,025,971) (107,406) (107,821) (1,001,002) 

  

(2,242,201) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,268,885 (107,566) (107,821) (1,001,002) 

  

52,495 

Net change in fund balances 130,271 

 

0 89,750 (0) 

 

220,021 

Fund balances at beginning of year 33,4()6 1,000 822 747,157 

  

782,385 

Fund balances at end of year S 163,676 $ 1,000 822 836,907 (0) $ $ 1,002,406 

9 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO ME STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Net change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 720,071 

Amounts reported for uovernmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in tzovernrnental funds as expenditures. However, 

in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets capitalized over their 

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 

capital outlay differs from depreciation for the period. 

Deprec at on (161,467) 

Capital Outlay 625,281 

Capital lease principal expense, which is considered an other financing use on 

the Statement of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance, 

is a reduction of capital lease payable on the Government-Wide 

Statements. Capital loan proceeds, which is considered an other financing 

source on the Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balance, is an increase in capital assets on the Government-Wide Statements. 

Capital lease principal expense 28,163 

Net pension liability decrease (increase) (52,5 15) 

Change in net position of governmental activities 659,483  

10 
The accompanying notes are an n egral part of these tinancial staternents. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - UTILITY FUND 

STA LENIENT OF NET POSITION 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 

Receivables, net 

Due from other funds 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 466,670 

335,032 

178,275 

25,484 

1,005,461 

5,942,402 

6,947,863 
  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

Deferred outflows - pension related 37,685 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts, salaries, and other payables 64,704 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 38,998 

Due in more than one year 1,899,221 

Deposits 228,911 

Net pension obligation 369,217 

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,536,347 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,601,051 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Pension related 124,756 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 4,004,184 

Restricted 215,196 

Unrestricted 40,362 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 4,259,742 

11 
The accompanying notes are a n egral part of these tinancial staternents. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - UTILITY FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Operating revenues: 

Water usage charges 

Sanitation - sewerage charges 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 

Water system: 

Operating services 

Depreciation expense 

Total water system 

Sanitation - sewerage collection and disposal: 

Personal services 

Operating services 

Materials and supplies 

Total sanitation 

Total operating expenses 

$ 630,402 

444,723 

1,075,124 

896,919 

210,937 

1,107,856 

222,066 

235,205 

22,452 

479,723 

1,587,578 

Operating income (loss) (5 12,454) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

 

State grants - operating grants 44,334 

In~shnent earnings 12 

Other revenue 79,349 

Interest - bonds (88,132) 

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 35,564 

Income (loss) before transfers (476,890) 

Transfers in 331,432 

Transfers out (3,850) 

Total transfers 327,582 

Change in net position (149,308) 

Net position at beginnina of year 4,409,050 

Net position at end of year 4,259,742 

12 
The accompanying notes are an n egral part of these tinancial staternents. 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The Town of Jonesboro. Louisiana (Town), was incorporated as a village on September 4, 1901, and as a town on 
May 14, 1903, under the provisions of the Lawrason Act. The Town operates under the Mayor- Board of Aldennen 
fonn of government with five aldermen. Aldermen are elected for four-year tenns and compensated as shown in this 
report. The Town of Jonesboro serves 4,680 citizens: services provided include police protection. fire protection, 
sanitation services. street maintenance. and various administration functions. The Town of Jonesboro also operates a 
water distribution system and sewer system. The Town of Jonesboro employs approximately fifty people to serve the 
needs of the citizens of the Town of Jonesboro. 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements of the Town of Jonesboro have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Govenunental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard 
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Town of 
Jonesboro applies all relevant GASB pronouncements, and GAAP, as applicable to govenunental 
entities. Also. the Town's financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
Louisiana R.S. 24:513, the Louisiana Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide and to the industry guide. 
Audiis of State and Local Government Units, published by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. 

B. Reporting Entity 

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, established criteria for determining the 
governmental reporting entity and component tuths that should be included within the reporting entity. 
Under provisions of this Statement, the Town of Jonesboro is considered a primary government, since it 
is a special purpose govenunent that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is 
fiscally independent of other state or local governments. As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally 
independent means that the Town of Jonesboro may, without the approval or consent of another 
governmental entity. determine or modify its own budget. levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and 
issue bonded debt. 

GASB Stateinent No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. 
establishes criteria for determining which, if any, coinponent units should be considered part of the 
Town of Jonesboro for financial reporting purposes. GASB Statement No. 61 provides additional 
criteria for classifying entities as component units. The basic criterion for including a potential 
coinponent unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. which includes: 

I. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body. and: 

i. The ability of the government to impose its will on that organization and/or 

ii. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 
impose specific financial burdens on the govenunent. 
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2. Organizations for which the govenunent does not appoint a voting majority but are 
fiscally dependent on the government and there is a potential for the organization to 
provide specific financial benefits to. or to impose specific financial burdens on, the 
govenunent regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected governing 
board, a governing board appointed by a higher level of govenunent, or a jointly 
appointed board. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if 
data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the 
relationship. 

Based on the above criteria, no component units were identified for the Town ofJonesboro. 

C. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The Town ofJonesboro's government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of the governmental activities and the business-
type activities for the Town of Jonesboro. Fiduciary activities of the Town of Jonesboro are not included in 
these statements. 

These statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Accordingly, all of the Town of Jonesboro's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources, including capital assets and long-term liabilities. are included in the 
accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in Net Position. 
Under the accnial basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are eanied while 
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Revenues. expenses, gains, losses. assets and liabilities resulting from exchange or exchange-
like transactions are recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is received or disbursed). 
Revenues. expenses, gains. losses. assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are 
recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 
function of the Town of Jonesboro's governmental activities. 

Program Revenues - Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities (Statement B) are derived 
directly from parties outside the Town of Jonesboro's taxpayers or citizenry, including (a) fees and charges 
paid by the recipient for goods or services offered by the program, and (b) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program: program revenues 
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the Town ofJonesboro's general revenues. 

Direct Expenses - The Town ofJonesboro reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities 
(Statement B). Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense. 
which can be specifically identified by function, is included in the direct expenses of each function. 

Indirect Expenses - The Town of Jonesboro reports all indirect expenses separately on the Statement of 
Activities (Statement B). Indirect expenses are those expenses that are not clearly identifiable with a 
function. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense. 

General revenues are taxes and other items that are not properly included among program revenues. The 
effect of interfiind activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statements. 
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D. Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the Town of Jonesboro are organized on the basis of funds. each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, defened outflows of resources. liabilities. deferred inflows of 
resources, fund equity, revenues, expenditures or expenses. as appropriate. additions. and deductions. Fund 
accottnting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid managetnent in 
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimtun number of 
funds maintained is consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Funds of the Towu of Jonesboro are 
classified into two categories: governmental and proprietary. 

Governmental Funds 

Govenunental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues. Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances for all major govenunental funds. An accompanying schedule is presented to 
reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and changes in fund balances as presented in these 
statements to the net position and changes in net position presented in the Govenunent- Wide financial 
statements. The Town ofJonesboro has presented all major funds. 

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement focus 
and the modified accnial basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets. deferred outflows of 
resources. current liabilities. and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Balance Sheets. 

Amounts recorded as assets exclude capital assets and the acquisition of capital assets is treated as an 
expenditure. Long-term debts are reported as an other financing source, and repayment of long-term debt is 
reported as an expenditure. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing 
uses) in fund balance. 

Under the modified accnial basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which 
they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. "Measurable" 
means the amount of the transaction can be determined, and "available" means collectible within the current 
period or soon thereafler to pay liabilities of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when 
received in cash and when collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded in the 
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general 
long-term debt, which are recognized when due. 

The Town ofJonesboro reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The primary operating fund of the Town of Jonesboro. the General Fund. accounts for 
all financial resources. except those required to be accounted for in other funds. The General Fund is 
available for any purpose provided it is expended or transfened in accordance with state and federal 
laws and according to Town policy. 

Fire Ad Valorem Tax Fund - The Fire Ad Valorem Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for 

the proceeds of Ad Valorem taxes restricted to expenditures of the Fire Deparunent. 

Street Ad Valorem Tax Fund - The Street Ad Valorem Tax Fund is a special revenue fund used to 
account for the proceeds of Ad Valorem taxes restricted to expenditures of the Street Department. 

Street Sales Tax Fund - The Street Sales T LX Fund is a special revenue fiind used to account for the 
proceeds of the special 1% sales and use tax levied for the purposes of construction. maintenance, 
repair. and improvements of the Town ofJonesboro's streets. 
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Revenues 

The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues: 

Those revenues susceptible to accnial are property taxes. franchise taxes. and charges for services. Fines and 
permit and license revenues are not susceptible to accnial because generally they are not measurable until 
received in cash. 

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid at the time of receipt or earlier if 
the susceptible-to-accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met, and the susceptible-to-
accnial criteria have been met. 

Interest earnings are recorded when the invesunents have matured. and the interest is available. 

Expenditures 

The govermnental funds use the following practices in recording expenditures: Salaries are recorded as 
expenditures when eanied by employees. 

Purchases of various operating supplies. etc. are recorded as expenditures when the related fund liability 

is incurred. 

Coinpensated absences are recognized as expenditures when leave is actually taken or when employees, or 
their heirs. are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death. 

Principal and interest on long-term debt are recognized when due. Other Financiiw Sources (Uses) 

The govenunental funds use the following practices in recording other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid, sales of fixed assets. and long-term debt proceeds 
and payments. are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These other financing sources (uses) are 
recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 

Propriekny Funds 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus. all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the 
balance sheet. Fund equity (net total position) is segregated into three components-net investment in capital 
assets, restricted net position. and unrestricted net position. Proprietary fund-type operating statements 
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total position. The proprietary funds use the 
accnial basis of accounting. where revenues are recognized in the period in which they are eanied while 
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. regardless of the timing of the related 
cash flows. 

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises where the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods 
or services to the general public on a continuing basis are financed through user charges: or (b) where the 
goveniing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues eanied, expenses incuned. and/or net 
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy. manageinent control. accountability, or other 
purpose. 
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The Enterprise Fund of the Town of Jonesboro is the Water and Sewer Fund, which accounts for the 
operations of the waterworks and sewerage systems. The intent of the Town of Jonesboro for these facilities 
is (a) that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or (b) that the periodic 
detennination of revenues eanied. expenses incurred. andlor net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy. management control. accountability, or other purposes. 

Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues in the proprietary fund are those that are generated from the primary operations of the 
fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that 
are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating 
expenses. 

E. Equity Classifications 

The Town ofJonesboro has implemented GASB Statement No. 63. Financial Reporting of Defened Outflows 
of Resources. Defened Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. 

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements, the difference 
between (a) assets and defened outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and defened inflows of resources is 
classified as net position and reported in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets: This classification consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets. net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds. mortgages, 
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition. constmction, or improvement of these 
assets. 

Restricted net position: This classification consists of net position with constraints placed on its use either by 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors. or laws or regulations of other governments. or law 
through constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position: Any other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 
investment in capital assets." 

When an expense is inctuTed for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available. management applies unrestricted net position first. unless a determination is made to use restricted 
net position. The policy concerning which to apply first varies with the intended use and legal requirements. 
This decision is typically made by management at the incunence of the expense. 

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the Town of Jonesboro is bound to honor constraints 
on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The 
classifications used in the govenunental fund financial statements are as follows: 

Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The Town had no amount 
in nonspendable funds for the year ended June 30. 2022. 
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Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the 
resources either (a) extenially imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant). grantors. contributors, 
or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 

Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by fonnal action of the Town Council. These amounts cannot be used for any other 
purpose unless the Town Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
(ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification 
also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed 
for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The Town Council typically establishes commitments 
through the adoption and amendment of the budget. The Town did not have any conunitted funds for the year 
ended June 30. 2022. 

Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to be used for a 
specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Town Cotuicil 
or through the Town Council delegating this responsibility to a body or official (Mayor) for specific 
purposes. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all govenunental funds 
except for the General Fund. The Town did not have any assigned funds for year ended June 30. 2022. 

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund. The Unassigned 
classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be 
eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounts. 

The Town ofJonesboro would typically use Restricted fiind balances first. followed by Committed resources. 
and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise. but reserves the right to selectively spend 
Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds. 

F. Budgets 

The Mayor prepares a proposed budget and submits it to the Town Council no later than fifteen days prior to 
the begiiuiing of each fiscal year. A summary of the proposed budget is published. and the public notified 
that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. A 
public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the hearing. 
After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and implement the 
budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year 
for which the budget is being adopted. The budget ordinance is structured such that revenues are budgeted 
by source and appropriations are budgeted by department and by principal object of expenditure. The Town 
Council may revise or amend the budget at its discretion during legally convened sessions. Management may 
amend the budget only below the departinent level. The Town of Jonesboro utilizes fonnal budgetary 
integration as a management control device for all funds. 

The June 30, 2022, Govenunental Funds' budgets were published in the official journal and made available 
for public inspection. A public hearing for the proposed budgets was held on May 11. 2021. The budgets 
were adopted June 8, 2021. but were vetoed by Mayor Thompson. The Council voted to override the veto on 
July 13. 2021, and the budget was adopted. The budgets were amended on September 21, 2021. and 
November 29, 2021. 

G. Encumbrances 

The Town of Jonesboro does not utilize encumbrance accounting. and inanagement does not believe that the 
use of encumbrance accounting would provide any significant benefit for budgetary purposes. 
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H. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits. and money market accounts. 
Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original maturities of 90 days 
or less. Under state law. the Town of Jonesboro may deposit funds in demand deposits in stock-owned 
federally insured depositoty institutions organized under the laws of the state of Louisiana or of any other 
state of the United States. or under the laws of the United States. The Town may invest in certificates and 
dine deposits with state banks organized wider Louisiana law and national banks having their principal 
offices in Louisiana. 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows. cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity date of 90 days or less when purchased. 

Under state law, the Town of Jonesboro may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes. or certificates. 
Those with maturities of 90 days or less would be classified as cash equivalents and all other reported as 
investments. 

The Town ofJonesboro reports restricted assets on the Stateinent of Net Position, which includes restricted 
cash (customer deposits) that is collected by the Water and Sewer Department. 

I. Investments 

The Town of Jonesboro's investments comply with Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955. Under state law, the 
Town of Jonesboro may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized tinder the laws of Louisiana. the laws of 
any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The Town of Jonesboro may invest in United 
States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or government-backed agency securities or certificates, and time 
deposits of state banks organized tinder Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in 
Louisiana. These deposits are classified as investments if their original maturities exceed 90 days. 

Investments are stated at fair value except for the following. which are permitted under GASB Statement No. 
31: 

Investments in non-participating interest earning contracts. such as non-negotiable certificates of deposit with 
redemption terms that do not consider market rates. are reported using a cost-based measure. 

The Town of Jonesboro reported at amortized cost money tnarket investments and participating interest-
bearing investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less. 

Interest-earning investtnent contracts include time deposits with financial institutions (such as certificates of 
deposit), repurchase agreements. and guaranteed investtnent contracts. 

Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that include U.S. Treasuiy 
obligations. 

J. Inventories 

Inventory is accounted for using the consumption method. where expenditures are recognized as inventory is 
used. All purchased inventory items are valued at cost (average cost method). Inventories of the Enterprise 
Funds consist of repair materials, spare parts, consumable supplies. and fuel. 
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K. Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
expenses. 

L. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastnicture assets (e.g.. roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items). are recorded in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns of the government-wide financial statements, but are not reported in the governmental fund financial 
statements. Acquisitions of property and equipment are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if 
historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation. The Town rnaintains a threshold level of $1.000 or more for capitalizing capital 
assets. 

Improvements and replacements of property and equipment are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs that do 
not improve or extend the lives of property and equipment are cluirged to expense as inctined. When assets 
are sold or retired, their cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any 
gain or loss is reported in the Statement of Activities. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable assets and is computed 
using the straight-line method. Depreciation is recorded as an expense in the Statement of Activities. with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. The estimated useful life for classes of 
assets are as follows: 

Estimated 

Description Lives  

Computer and Peripheral Equiprnent 4-5 years 

Machinery and Equiprnent 3-20 years 

Vehicles 5 years 

Portable Building 5-10 years 

Water Meters 10 years 

Water Pumping Station 20 years 

Se we rat4e Treat me nt P Ian 20 years 

Sewerage Collection Systern 20 years 

Streets and Sidewalks 20 years 

Building Improvements 40 years 

Water Distribution System 40 years 

In accordance with GASB Stateinent No. 34. general infrastructure capital assets consisting of streets, 
bridges, sidewalks, and drainage systems acquired before July 1. 2003. are excluded from capital assets. 

M. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

The Town of Jonesboro reports decreases in net position that relate to future periods as defened outflows of 
resources in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary funds staternents of net position. 

The deferred outflows of resources are entirely due to the net pension liability, and they do not affect the 
oovernmental funds financial statements. 
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N. Compensated Absences 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16. a liability for unpaid vacation that is attributable to services 
already rendered and that is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and 
employee is accnied as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the govenunent-wide financial stateinents. For 
govenunental fund financial stateinents. the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount 
that is norinally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources. These amounts are 
recorded in the account "compensated absences payable" in the fund froin which einployees who have 
accumulated leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not reported. 

Employees of the Town of Jonesboro earn one week to three weeks' vacation leave annually, depending on 
length of service; with the exception of appointed department heads. vacation leave does not accumulate. 
Employees eani from one week to three weeks of sick leave annually, depending on length of service, and all 
sick leaves are forfeited upon termination of employment. The liability for these compensated absences is 
recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The cost of leave privileges is 
recognized as a current-year expenditure in the General Fwid when leave is taken. 

The Town ofJonesboro has the following policy relating to vacation and sick leave: 

A full-time employee after completing one year of continuous employment from the date of hire is 
eligible for five days of vacation with pay. An employee, upon completion of two years continuous 
employment from the date of hire. is eligible for 10 days of vacation with pay. Upon completion of 
five years of continuous employment, the employee is eligible for 15 days of vacation with pay. 

Full-time employees who have completed their 90-day probation period will be given four hours of 
sick thne per month until their first aiuiiversary. Thereafter, each employee is granted /i0 hours sick 
leave with pay aanually. Each employee may accrue up to 360 hours of paid sick leave. 

The Town ofJonesboro's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follow: 

Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accnied as a liability as 
the benefits are earned by the employees when both of the following conditions are met: 

The employee's right to receive compensation is attributable to services already rendered, and 

It is probable that the employee will be compensated for the benefits through paid time off or 
some other means. such as cash payments at termination or retirement. 

A liability for sick leave should be accrued using one of the following termination approaches: 

An accrual for earned sick leave should be made only to the extent it is probable that the 
benefits will result in termination payments. rather than be taken as absences due to illness or 
other contingencies, such as medical appointments and funerals. 
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Altematively, a governmental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave liability based on the sick 
leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who cuffently are eligible to receive 
termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to 
receive such paytnents. 

The Town ofJonesboro uses the first approach to accnie the liability for sick lea ,e which includes 
salary- related payments. 

There are no compensated absences as ofJune 30. 2072. 

O. Long-Term Obligations 

In the goyermnent-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-tenn 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond payables are reported net 
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
amortized over the tenn of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements. expenditures for principal and interest payments for long-term obligations 
are recognized when due as current liabilities and other financing uses. The face amount of debt issued is 
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received. are reported as debt 
service expenditures 

P. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The Town of Jonesboro reports increases in net position that relate to future periods as defeiTed inflows of 
resources in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietaiy funds statements of net position. The 
Town of Jonesboro will not recognize the related revenues until a future event occurs. No deferred inflows 
of resources affect the govenunental funds financial statements. 

Q. lnterfund Transactions 

Interfimd activity is reported as loans. services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services 
provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates. are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. 
Reimbursements are when a fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its 
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between 
governmental or enterprise funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial 
statements. 

Resources belonging to particular funds are commonly shared with other funds that need access to additional 
resources. When resources are provided without the expectation of repayment. the transaction is reported as 
a transfer and is treated as a source of income by the recipient fund and as an expenditure by the providing 
fund. 

Activity between funds that is representative of lending or borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of 
the fiscal year are referred to as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the Fund Financial 
Statements Balance Sheet. as well as all other outstanding balances between fwids. 
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In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, some 
amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were eliminated or reclassified. Interfund 
receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and liabilities within 
the governmental activities column. 

R. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require management to tnake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues. expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad Valorem taxes are levied on a calendar year basis on real and business property located within the Town of 
Jonesboro's boundaries. Taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Ad valorem 
taxes are levied by the Town of Jonesboro on property values assessed by the Jackson Parish Tax Collector and 
approved by the state of Louisiana Tax Commission in November of each year. Taxes are levied by the Town of 
Jonesboro in September or October, and taxpayers are billed in November. Billed taxes become delinquent on 
January 1 of the following year. State law requires the Town to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which 
the assessment is made, and if the taxes are not paid by the due date. taxes bear interest at the rate of 1.25% per 
month until the taxes are paid. After notice is given to the delinquent taxpayers. the Town is required by the 
Constitution of the State of Louisiana to sell the least quantity of property necessary to settle the taxes and interest 
owed. 

Revenues from ad valorem taxes are recognized in the period for which taxes are levied, and. accordingly, taxes are 
budgeted in the vear billed. The amount of taxes to be collected occurs in December of the current vear. and 
January and February of the subsequent year. All property taxes are recorded in the general and special revenue 
funds. The Town ofJonesboro considers the date penalty and interest accnies (January 1) as the date an enforceable 
legal claim occurs for property taxes. 

Estimated uncollectible taxes are those taxes based on past experience which will not be collected in the subsequent 
year and are primarily due to subsequent adjustments to the tax roll. Historically, virtually all ad valorem taxes 
receivable were collected since they are secured by property. Therefore, there is no allowance for uncollectible 
taxes. 

The schedule below summarizes the millage that was approved by the Town Council on September 30, 2023. and 
the millage that is the maximum millage that can be assessed without the approval of the voter of the Town of 
Jonesboro. For Ad valorein taxes for the year ended June 30. 2022, three rates of taxes were levied on property 
within the corporate limits, as follows: 

Authorized Levied 

Millage Millage 

Constitutional 6.89 6.89 

Operation and maintenance - fire protection 5.00 4.86 

Operation and maintenance - streets 5.00 4.86 

The difference between authorized and levied millages is the result of reassesstnents of taxable property 
required by Article 7, Section 18 (f) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. A revaluation of all property is 
required after 1978 to be completed no less than every four years. Total assessed value on the 2022 tax roll 

was S22.053,360. 
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3. Sales Tax 

The voters of the Town ofJonesboro levied a one percent sales and use tax on April 1, 1980, to provide funds for any 
lawful activity of the Town of Jonesboro. 

In January of 1988, the taxpayers of the Town of Jonesboro levied an additional one percent sales and use tax for a 
period of 10 years commencing August 1, 1989. In July of 1998, the taxpayers of the Town of Jonesboro renewed 
the one percent sales and use tax for an additional 10 years commencing August 1, 1999. On May 4, 2019, the 
taxpayers renewed the one percent sales and use tax for an additional 10 year commencing August 1. 2019. The 
purpose of this tax is for the general construction, maintenance. repair, and itnprovements of the Town of 
Jonesboro's streets. 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

At June 30. 2022, the Town of Jonesboro had cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $2.211,707. The 
following schedule shows the cash and cash equivalents by type: 

Demand deposits 

Petty cash 

Restricted cash 

Time deposits 

Total 

808,590 

3.600 

1,064,485 

335,032 

$ 2,211,707 

These deposits are stated at cost. which approximates market. Under state law. these deposits (or the resulting bank 
balances) inust be secured by federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal auent bank. 
The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on 
deposit with the fiscal agent. 

Cash and investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Town at June 30, 
2022. Deposits are considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance 
and the deposits are (a) uncollateralized, (b) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, 
or (c) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's tnist department or agent but not in the 
depositor-government's name. The Town of Jonesboro Itas cash and cash equivalents that are covered by $250,000 
of federal depository insurance. The remaining balance is exposed to custodial credit risk because it is uninsured 
and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution. 

At June 30, 2022, the Town of Jonesboro had $2,395,588 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are 
secured from risk by $750,000 of federal deposit insurance and S1.645,588 of pledged securities. Even though the 
pledged securities are considered uncollateralized under the provisions of GASB Statetnent No. 40. Louisiana 
Revised Statute 30:1229 imposes a statutory requiretnent on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged 
securities within 10 days of being notified that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 
Louisiana R.S. 39:1224 requires bonds, or other such instnunents furnished as security, to be deposited with the 
depositing authority or with an unaffiliated bank or tnist company, Federal Reserve Bank, or any Federal Home 
Loan Bank or its successor. This security is deemed to be under the control and in the possession of the public entity 
and deemed to be held in its natne. The Town ofJonesboro has complied with these requirements of state law. 
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5, Investments 

As stated above in Note 2, Cash and Cash Equivalents. investments are categorized to give an indication of the level 
of risk assumed by the Town. The Town has only certificates of deposit which are presented in cash and cash 
equivalents. 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of investments. 
The Town ofJonesboro does not have a policy addressing interest rate risk. 

6. Receivables 

The receivables of $616,735 at June 30, 2022. are as follows: 

Total 

Street Governmental Business-Typo 

General Sales Tax LCDBG Activities Activities 

General sales and use $101,623 $ 101,623 $ - $ 203,246 $ 
Federal government grants - - 222,766 222,766 

 

Charges for services 12,448 

  

12,448 178,275 

Total $114,071 $ 101,623 $222,766 $ 438,460 $ 178,275 

Managetnent believes all receivables to be collectible; therefore, no allowance is recorded as ofJune 30, 2022. 

The remainder of the page is intentionally blank. 
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7. Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30. 2022, is as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Balance 
Beginning 

of Year Additions Deletions 

Balance 
End 

of Year 

    

Construction in progress 

 

$ 521,108 

 

$ 521,108 
Land 148,177 

  

148,177 

Total 148,177 521,108 

 

669,285 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

    

Land improveMents 1,869,457 - 

 

1,869,457 
Buildings 922,006 - 

 

922,006 
Equipment and furniture 2,115,057 45,173 

 

2,160,230 
Vehicles 1,248,905 59,000 

 

1,307,9(15 

Total 6,155,425 104,173 

 

6,759,598 

Less acctunulated depreciation: 

    

Land improvements 850,366 93,557 

 

943,923 
Buildings 863,858 7,530 

 

871,388 
Equipment and furniture 1,935,037 30,058 

 

1,965,095 

Vehicles 1,046,281 30,322 

 

1,076,603 

Total 4,695,542 161,467 

 

4,857,009 

Capital assets being depreciated, net 1,459,883 (57,294) 

 

1,4(12,589 

Capital assets, net $ 1,608,060 $ 463,814 g $ 2,071,874 
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Business-type Activi ties: 

   

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

   

Constniction in progress 

   

Land 

   

Total 

   

Capital assets being depreciated: 

   

Land itnprovetnents 

   

Buildings 125,411 

 

125,411 
Equipment and whicles 1,344,263 35,500 1,379,763 

Water system 4,829,965 

 

4,829,965 

Sewer system 5,230,593 

 

5,230,593 

Total 11,530,232 35,500 11,565,732 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

   

Land improvements - 

  

Buildings 75,686 2,260 77,946 
Equipment and whicles 1,340,380 2,051 1,342,431 

Water system 1,945,677 110,978 2,056,655 

Sewer system 2,050,651 95,647 2,146,298 

Total 5,412.394 210,936 5,623.33() 

Capital assets being depreciated, net 6.117,838 (175.436) 5.942,402 

Capital assets, net $ 6,117,838 $(175,436) $ 5,942,402 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2022, is $161,467, charged to the following governmental 
fitnctions: 

Functional Allocation of Depreciation Expense 

General government 72,660 

Public safety 48,440 

Highways and streets 40,367 

Total 161,467 
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8. Payables 

The payables of $220,866 at June 30, 2022. are as follows: 

Fund 

General Enterprise Total 

Accounts payable $ 118,991 $ 64,7()4 $ 183,695 

Payroll liabilities 37,171 

 

37,171 

Total $ 156,162 $ 64,704 $ 220,866 

9. Retirement Systems 

Substantially all employees of the Town of Jonesboro are members of the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana, Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana. or Firefighters' Retirement System of 
Louisiana. These systems are cost-sharing. multi-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by separate 
boards of trustees. 

A. Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description 

The Town ofJonesboro contributes to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) which is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Systern is cornposed of two distinct plans. Plan A and Plan B, 
with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the municipality are members of Plan A. 

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan and are paid 
wholly or in part from municipal funds and all elected municipal officials are eligible to participate in the System. 

Any member of Plan A can retire providing the member meets on of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with 25 years of creditable service. 
Age 60 with a minimum of ten years of creditable service. 

3. Under age 60 with five years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five years creditable service at death of member. 
5. Any age with 20 years creditable service, exclusive of military service with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 

Generally. the monthly amount of the retirernent shall consist of an amount equal to 3% of the employee's monthly average 
final compensation rnultiplied by his or her years of creditable service. However. under certain conditions as outlined in 
the statutes. the benefits are limited to specified amounts. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits 
are established or amended by state statute. 

For the year ended June 30. 2022, the Town of Jonesboro's total payroll for all employees was $1,313,017. Total covered 
payroll was $663,778. Covered payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Town of Jonesboro to active employees 
covered by the Plan. 
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The System issues an aanual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees Retirement 
System of Louisiana. 7937 Office Park Boulevard. Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 925-4810, or by 
visiting the System's website www.mersla.com. 

Contributions 

According to state statute. contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the year 
ended Julie 30. 2022. the actual employer contribution rate was 29.50% for Plan A, actuarially determined as an amount 
that, when combined with employee contributions. is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during 
the year. with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. In accordance with state statute, the System 
receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These additional sources of income are used as employer 
contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities but are not considered special fiuiding 
situations. The Town of Jonesboro's contributions to the System under Plan A for the year eliding June 30. 2022. were 
$198.0.U. Under Plan A. members are required by state statute to contribute 9.50% of their annual covered salary. The 
contributions are deducted from the employee's wages or salary and remitted by the Town of Jonesboro to the System 
monthly. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

At June 30. 2022. the Town of Jonesboro reported a liability of $931,614 for its proportionate share of the Net Pension 
Liability. The Net Pension Liability was ineasured as of June 30. 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town of Jonesboro's proportion of the 
Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the Town's long-tenn share of contributions to the pension plan relative 
to the projected contributions of all participating employers. actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021. the Town's 
proportion was 0.334932%, which was an increase of 0.023983% from its proportion ineasured as of June 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June 30. 2022. the Town of Jonesboro recognized pension expense of S412,746 plus employer's 
amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions. which was S495,227. Total pension expense for the Town of Jonesboro for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
was $109.069. 
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At June 30, 2022, tlie Town of Jonesboro reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions froin the following sources: 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and 
actual experience 

$1,594 $5,168 

Changes in assumptions 13,075 

 

Net difference between projected and 
actual eaniings on pension plan 

224,546 - 

Changes in employer's proportion of 
beg NPL 

30,712 13,3, 6 

Differences between employer and 
proportionate share of contributions 

  

Subsequent measurement contributions - - 

Total $269,727 828,494 

The $269,927 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Town's contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of Net Pension Liability in the year ended June 
30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defen-ed inflows of resources will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

 

2023 S81,092 

2024 31,169 

2025 21,488 

2026 107,683 

Total 241,432 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as ofJune 
30. 2021. are as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2021 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 3 years 

Investment Rate of Retwit 6.95% 

Inflation rate 2.50% 

Salary increases, including inflation and 
merit increases 

1 to 4 years of service - 6.4% 
More than 4 years of service - 4.5% 

Ammitant and beneficiary mortality 
PubG-2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table set equal to 120% for males 
and females. each adjusted using their respective male and female 
MP2018 scales. 

Employee mortality 
PubG-2010(B) Employee Table set equal to 120% for males tuld 
females. each adjusted using their respective male and female 
MP2018 scales. 

Disabled lives mortality 
PubNE-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Table set equal to 120% for 
males and females with the full generational MP2018 scale. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retuni (expected returns, net of pension plan invesunent expenses and 
inflation) are developed for each n4or asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's 
target allocation as of June 30. 2021, are stumnarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected

 

  

Real Rate of Return 

Public equity 53% 2.33% 

Public fixed income 38o/0 16.67% 

Alternatives 90/0 0.40% 

Totals 100% 19.40% 

Inflation 

 

2.60% 

Expected arithmetic norninal return 

 

22.00% 
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Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.95% for the year ended June 30, 2021. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions front participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates. 
which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions. the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 

Sensitivity oldie oPonesboro's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Town of Jonesboro's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.95%, as well as what the Town of Jonesboro's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (5.95%) or one percentage-point higher (7.95%) 
than the current rate: 

1.0% Decrease 
Current Discount 

Rate 
1.0% Increase 

Employer's proportionate share 
of net pension liability 

1,379,769 $ 931,614 $ 553,086 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana Audit Report at www.mersla.com. 

B. Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description 

The Town of Jonesboro contributes to the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) which is a cost 
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for all full-time police officers 
employed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests. providing he or 
she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. 

Any member of the Plan who was hired before January 1, 2013, can retire providing the member meets on of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with 25 years of creditable service. 

2. Age 50 with a minimum of twenty or more years of creditable service. 

3. Age 55 with a minimum of twelve years of creditable service. 

4. After 20 years of creditable service at any age. with actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 
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The monthly amount of benefits are 3 1/3% of their average final compensation (employee's average monthly earnings 
during the highest 36 consecutive or joined months if service was intemipted) per number of years of creditable service not 
to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Eligibility for retireinent for members hired on or after January 1. 2013. is as follows: 

Hazardous Duty 

1. Any age with 25 years of creditable service. 

2. Age 55 with twelve or more years of creditable service. 

3. After 20 years of creditable service at any age, with actuanally reduced benefit from age 55. 

Non-Hazardous Duty 

1. Any age with 30 years of creditable service. 

2. Age 55 with twenty-five or more years of creditable service. 

3. Age 60 with ten or more years of creditable service. 

4. After 20 years of creditable service at any age, with actuanally reduced benefit from age 55. 

The benefit rates are three percent and two and a half percent. respectively. of average final compensation (average monthly 
earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was internipted) per number of years of 
creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 

For tlie year ended June 30. 2022, the Town of Jonesboro's total payroll for all employees was S1.313,017. Total covered 
payroll was $77,353. Covered payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Town of Jonesboro to active einployees 
covered by the Plan. 

The Systetn issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Systetn. The report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Police Employees 
Retiretnent Systein of Louisiana. 7722 Office Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling 
(225) 929-7411. or by visiting the System's website www.lampers.org. 

Contributions 

According to state statute. contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the year 
ended June 30. 2022. the actual employer contribution rate was 29.75%, actuarially determined as an amount that, when 
combined with employee contributions. is expected to finance the costs of benefits eanied by employees during the year, 
with an additional amount to finance any unfiinded accnied liability. The employer and employee contribution rates for all 
members hired prior to January 1, 2013, and Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 2013. were 33.75% and 
10.00%, respectively. In accordance with state statute, the System receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing 
funds. These additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support from non-
employer contributing entities but are not considered special funding situations. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred In/lows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

At June 30. 2022, the Employer reported a liability of $39 L108, for its proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability. 
The Net Pension Liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. and the total pension liability used to calculate the Net 
Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town of Jonesboro's proportion of the 
Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the Town of Jonesboro's long-term share of contributions to the 
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 
2021, the Town of Jonesboro's proportion was 0.073371%, which was an increase of 0.033263% from its proportion 
measured as ofJune 30. 2021. 

For the year ended June 30. 2022, the Town of Jonesboro recognized pension expense of $49,333 plus employer's 
amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions. which was O75,134 Total pension expense for the Town of Jonesboro for the year ended June 30. 
2022. was $25.797. 

At June 30. 2022. the Town of Jonesboro reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions froin the following sources: 

 

Deferred 
Outflows 

of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $4.240 $7.007 

Changes in assumptions 29,655 6,394 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan 153,486 

 

Changes in employer's proportion of beg NPL 202219 66.444 
Differences between employer and proportionate 
share of contributions 

  

Subsequent measurement contributions - - 

Total $389,600 S79,845 

The $389.600 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting froin Town ofJonesboro contributions 
subsequent to the ineasureinent date will be recognized as a reduction of Net Pension Liability in the year ended June 30. 
2022. Other ainounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

2023 $66,241 

2024 132,952 

2025 30,052 

2026 80,510 
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Assumptions 

summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as of June 30. 2021. are 
follows: 

In 

Valuation Date June 30, 2021 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Nonnal Cost 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Investment Rate of Return 6.95%, net of investment expense 

Inflation Rate 1 .50% 

Mortality For ammitants and beneficiaries. the Pub-2010 Public 
Retiretnent Plan Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median 
Healthy Retirees multiplied by 115% for tnales and 125% 
for females. each with full generational projection using 
the MP2019 sale was used. 

For disabled lives, the Pub-2010 Public Retiretnent Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Disable Retirees multiplied by 
105% for males and 1 15% for females, each with fiill 
generational projection using the MP2019 scale was used. 

For employees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Employees 
multiplied by 115% for males and 125% for females, each 
with full generational projection using the MP2019 scale 
was used. 

Projected Salary Increases Years of Service Salary Growth Rate 

 

1-2 12.30% 

 

Above 2 4.70% 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 4 years 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost-of-living increases. The present 
values do not include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of Tnistees. 

generational 
order 

class 

mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study perfonned by the prior actuaiy on plan data for 
period of July 1, 2014. through June 30. 2019, and review of similar law enforcement mortality. A change was made full 

mortality which combines the use of a base mortality table with appropriate mortality improvement scales. 
to set the base mortality table, actual plan mortality experience was assigned a credibility weighting and combined with 

standard table to produce current levels of mortality. The best estimates of the arithmetic rates of return for each major asset 

included in the System's target allocation as of June 30. 2021. are summarized in the following table: 
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Asset Class Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return 

Equity 49% 3.08% 

Fixed income 34% 0.54% 

Alternatives 18% 1.02% 

Other -% - 
Totals 100% 5% 

Inflation 

 

2.55% 

Expected arithmetic nominal retum 

 

7.55% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.950%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the 
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that 
contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into 
consideration the recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Town of Jonesboro's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Town of Jonesboro's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 6.950%, as well as what the Town of Jonesboro's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (5.950%) or one percentage-point higher (7.950%) than 
the current rate: 

 

1.0% 
Decrease 

Current 
Discount Rate 

1.0% 
Increase 

Employer's proportionate share of 
net pension liability $1,203,433 $370,691 $572,592 
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Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiducialy net position is available in the separately issued Municipal Employees' 
Retirernent Systern of Louisiana Audit Report at www.lampers.com. 

C. Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description 

The Town of Jonesboro contributes to the Firefighters' Retirement Systern of Louisiana (System) which is a cost sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for all full-time firefighters who 
eani more than 5375 per month and are employed by any municipality. parish. or fire protection district of the State of 
Louisiana. 

Any member of the Plan can retire providing the member meets one of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with 25 years of creditable service. 

2. Age 50 with a minimum of twenty or rnore years of creditable service. 

3. Age 55 with a minimum of twelve years of creditable service. 

The monthly amount of benefits are 3 1/3% of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of 
highest pay multiplied by their total years of service. not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town's total payroll for all employees was $1,313,017. Total covered payroll was 
S208,945. Covered payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Town to active employees covered by the Plan. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana, 3100 
Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge. Louisiana, or by visiting the System's website www.lafirefightersret.com. 

Contributions 

According to state statute. contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the year 
ended June 30, 2022. total contributions due for employers and einployees were 35.75%. actuarially determined as an 
amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits eanied by employees 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accnied liability. The employer and employee 
contribution rates for all members were 32.25% and 10.00%. respectively. In accordance with state statute. the System 
receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These additional sources of income are used as employer 
contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities but are not considered special funding 
situations. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outfloii,s of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

At June 30, 2022, the Town of Jonesboro reported a liability of $605,762 for its proportionate share of the Net Pension 
Liability. The Net Pension Liability was measured as of June 30. 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town of Jonesboro 's proportion of the 
Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the Town's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to 
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021. the Town's proportion 
was 0.085908% which \vas an increase of 0.011868% from its proportion measured as ofJune 30. 2021. 

For the year ended June 30. 2022, the Town of Jonesboro recognized pension expense of $72,776 plus employer's 
amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions, which was ($29,087). Total pension expense for the Town for the year ended June 30. 2022. was $43,687. 

At June 30, 2022, the Town ofJonesboro reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Defeffed 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $3,62 I $78,552 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan 137,221 

 

Changes in assumptions 49,950 - 

Changes in employer's proportion of beg NPL 110,927 30,556 

Differences between etnployer and proportionate share of 
contributions - - 

Subsequent measurement contributions 

  

Total $3()1,719 $59,1()8 

Any amount reported as defeffed inflows of resources related to pensions resulting front Town of Jonesboro contributions 
subsequent to the measuretnent date will be recognized as a reduction of Net Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. 
Other amottnts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

2023 $48,211 

2024 51,869 

2025 38,466 

2026 95,326 

2027 13,212 

2028 ('4,473) 
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Acivarial Assumpilons 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as of June 30. 
2021, are as follows: 

 

Valuation Date June 30, 2021 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Nonnal Cost 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Investment Rate of Retum 
7.00% m , net of pension plan investent expense, including 
inflation 

Inflation Rate 2.50%i 

Salary Increases 14.10% in the first two years of service and 5.20% with 3 
or more years of service: includes inflation and merit 
increases (in 2019, salary increases ranged from 14.75% in 
the first two years of service to 4.50% with 25 or more 
years of service) 

Mortality rates For active members, mortality was set equal to the Pub-
2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Safety 

Below-Median Employees. 

For annuitants and beneficiaries, mortality was set equal to 
the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees. 

For disabled retirees. mortality was set equal to the Pub-

 

2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Disabled Retirees. 

In all cases the base table \vas multiplied by 105% for 
males and 115% for females. each with full generational 
projection using the appropriate MP2019 scale. 
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The estimated long-term expected rate of retuni on pension plan investments was determined by the System's 
actuary using the System's target asset allocation and the G.S. Curran & Company Consultant Average study for 
2021. The consultants' average study included projected nominal rates of return. standard deviations of returns. and 
correlations of returns for a list of common asset classes collected from a number of investment consultants and 
investment management firms. Each consultant's response included nominal expected long-term rates of return. In 
order to arrive at long term expected arithmetic real rates of retuni, the actuary normalized the data received from 
the consultant's responses in the following ways. Where nominal retunis received were arithmetic, the actuary 
simply reduced the retuni assumption by the long-term inflation assumption. Where nominal returns were 
geometric. the actuary converted the return to aritlunetic by adjusting for the long-term standard deviation and then 
reduced the assumption by the long-tenn inflation assumption. Using the target asset allocation for the System and 
the average values for expected real rates of return, standard deviation of retunis. and correlation of returns, an 
arithmetic expected nominal rate of return and standard deviation for the portfolio was determined. The System's 
long-term assumed rate of inflation of 2.50% was used in this process for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

The long-term expected real rate of return is an important input into the actuary's determination of the reasonable 
range for the discount rate which is used in determining the total pension liability. Prior year's financial reports 
presented the long-term expected real rate of return provided by the System's investment consultant. whereas this 
year's report presents this information for both fiscal years 2021 and 2020 from the System's actuary. The actuary's 
method incorporates information from multiple consultants and investments firms regarding future expected rates of 
return, variances, and correlation coefficients for each asset class. The actuaty's method integrates data from 
nuiltiple sources to produce average values thereby reducing reliance on a single data source. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major class included in the System's target asset allocation as 
ofJune 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, are stunmarized in the following tables: 

 

Asset Class Target Allocation 
Lon-Term Expected

 
Real Rate of Return 

Equity US Equity 26% 5.72% 

Non-US Equity 12% 6.24% 

Global Equity 10% 6.23% 

Emerging Market Equity 6% 8.61% 

Fixed Income US Core Fixed Income -)6% 1.00% 

Emerging Market Debt 5% 3 .40% 

Multi-Asset Global Tactical Asset Allocation % 4.22% 

Strategies Risk Parity -% 4.2")% 

Alternatives Real Estate 6% 4.-)0% 

Private Equity 9% 10.29% 
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Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution 
rates, and that contributions from participating employers and non-employer contributing entities will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by the Board of Tnistees and by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee taking into consideration the recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on these assumptions, the 
System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore. the long-tenn expected rate of retuni on pension plan investinents was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity ofthe Town (Ponesboro Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Io Chan ?s in the Discount 
Rate 

The following presents the Town of Jonesboro's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.90%. as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (5.9%) or one percentage-point higher (7.9%) 
than the current rate: 

I.0% Decrease 
Current Discount 

1.0% Increase 

 

Rate 

 

Employer's proportionate share $ 
of net pension liability 

610,210 318,078 74,444 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Firefighters' 
Retirement System of Louisiana Audit Report at www.lafirefightersret.com. 
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10. On Behalf Supplemental Pay 

Certain employees meeting statutory qualifications in the fire and police departments receive supplemental pay 
directly from the State of Louisiana. This supplemental pay in the amount of S36.000 is recognized as 
intergovenimental revenue and public safety expenditures in the following deparunents: 

Department Amount 
Police S12.000 
F ire 24.000 
Total S36,000 

11. Commitments and Contingencies 

A. Litigation 

At June 30, 2022, the Town of Jonesboro is involved in several lawsuits. In the opinion of the Town of 
Jonesboro's legal counsel, the outcome of any reinaining lawsuits will not inaterially affect the financial 
stateinents. 

B. Grants Receivable 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies. principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected. may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this titne although the Town of Jonesboro 
expects such amounts. if any, to be immaterial. 

12. Long-Term Obligations 

The following schedule is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
The schedule also includes the current portion (due in one year or less) of the long-term obligations. 

The capital lease is paid using resources from the govenunental activities. whereas the compensated absences are 
paid using resow-ces from the corresponding fund in which the salaries are being paid. The bond principal 
payments are being paid frotn the business-type activities. 
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Governmental activities: 

Beginning 

of Year Additions Deletions 
End 

of Year 
Due Within 

One Year 

     

Capital leases $ 167,523 $ - $ (28,163) $ 139,360 $ 29.350 

Net pension liability 1,784,625 20,417 (533,459) 1,271,583 

 

Total 1,952,148 20,417 (561,622) 1,410,943 29,350 

Business-type activities: 

     

Bonds payable 1,975,391 - (37,172) 1,938,219 38,998 

Net pension liability 443,639 

 

(74,422) 369,217 - 

Total 2,419,030 

 

(111,594) 2,307,436 38,998 

Total long-term obligations $ 4,371.178 $ 20,417 $ (673,216) $ 3,718,379 $ 68,348 

The individual bond issue is as follows: 

Final Interest 
Original Interest Payment to Principal 

Bond Issue Issue Date Issue Rate Due Maturity Outstanding  

Business-type Activities: 

USDA - Water 

Revenue Bonds Series 
2008 1/22/2009 $ 2,300,000 4.5% 1/22/1949 $ 1,472,355 $ 1,975,391 

The Town of Jonesboro records iteins under capital lease as a capital asset and an obligation in the 
accompanying financial statements. The cost of the 2018 Ford F550 9' Mini Pumper was 8105.000 and the entire 
cost was financed by Government Capital Corporation at an interest rate of 4.725% for 10 years. Lease payments 
are due on November 23 annually. 

The Town of Jonesboro records items under capital lease as a capital asset and an obligation in the 
accompanying financial statements. The cost of the 2004 American LaFrance 500 Gallon tankers was $121,054. 
and $100.895 of the cost was financed by Government Capital Corporation at an interest rate of 3.97% for five 
years. Lease payments are due on Febnary 3 annually. 
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The annual requirements to amortize all bonds and leases outstanding at June 30.2022, are scheduled below. 

For the 
Year Ended 
June 30th 

Business-type Activities 
Bonds 

Governmental Activities 
Leases 

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 
2023 $ 38,998 86,306 $ 125,304 $ 29,350 ##### $57,471 

2024 40,666 84,638 125,304 30,588 4,883 35,471 
2025 42,534 82,77(1 125,304 31,878 3,592 35,47(1 
2026 44,488 80,816 125,304 11,076 2,247 13,323 

2027 46,532 78,772 125,304 11,600 1,723 13,323 
2(_128-2(132 266,841 359,679 626,520 24,869 1,776 26,645 
2033-2037 333.792 292,728 626,520 

   

2038-2042 418.003 208,517 626,520 

   

2043-2047 523,185 1()3,335 626,520 

   

2048-2049 183.180 6,661 189,841 

   

Total 1,938,219 $ 1,384,222 $ 3,322,441 $ 139,361 ##### ###### 

13. Grants 

   

Federal 
Program Description Revenues Expenditures Expenditures 

Airport Imp. Obstruction removal $ 128,325 $ 128,325 $ 128,325 
ARPA American Rescue Plan Act 299,776 299.776 299,776 

LCDBG Sewer site improvements 521,108 521,108 521,108 

 

Total federal 949,209 949.209 949,209 

LGAP 

 

18,850 

   

Fire Insurance Rebate 17,673 

   

Police Supplemental Pay 12,000 

   

Firefighters Supplemental Pay 24,000 

  

LGAP Imp. to Cynthia and Terrell lift 

stations 

25,484 

   

Other State 11.152 

   

Total state 109,159 

   

Other Local 5.873 

   

Totals $ 1,064,241 
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14. Risk Management 

The Town of Jonesboro is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destniction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town of Jonesboro maintains 
commercial insurance coverage from independent third parties covering each of these risks of loss, except for 
general liability. law enforcement officers' liability. and public officials' liability coverages that were obtained 
from the Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (Agency). The Louisiana Municipal Risk Management 
Agency is a municipal risk pool administered by the Louisiana Municipal Association, and the Agency operated 
similar to a conunercial insurance company. 

Premiums are assessed for members of the Louisiana Municipal Association annually. based on past experience 
of claitns. The Agency services all claitns for risk of loss to which the Town ofJonesboro is exposed and cannot 
assess additional amounts if losses exceed their pretnium (the covered risks are transferred to the Agency). 
Managetnent believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the Town of 
Jonesboro. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year ended June 30. 2022. 

15. Deficit Net Position 

At June 30, 2022. an unrestricted net position deficit of $1.227,719 exists for the Town of Jonesboro (for the 
governmental activities, S1,268.080, offset by the business-type activities. S40,362), resulting froin the net 
pension liability that \vas accounted for according to GASB Statetnent 68. The liability is an estimate of the 
Town's proportionate share of the cost-sharing retirement plan for inunicipal einployees, firefighters, and police. 
Please refer to Note 8 for a detailed explanation of the retirement plans. 

16. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the fmancial statements were 
available to be issued, September 30, 2023, and determined that one event occurred that requires 
disclosure. On November 8, 2022, a new Mayor was elected who took office on January 6, 2023. The 
audit of these financial statements was not completed by December 31, 2022, as required by state law. 
No subsequent events occurring after September 30, 2023, have been evaluated for inclusion in these 
financial statements. 
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Original 

Budge t 

Final 

Budget Actual 

Valiance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
REVENUES 

    

Taxes: 

    

Ad valorem $ 152,000 152,000 $ 163,699 $ 11,699 

Sales and use 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,098,921 48,921 

Franchise 130,000 130,000 142,452 12,452 

Penalties and interest on delinquent taxes 250 250 

 

(250) 

Licenses and permits: 

    

Business licenses and permits 97,500 97,500 205,141 107,641 

Other licenses and permits 

 

- 17,169 17,169 

Intergovernmental: 

    

Fecleral grants 662,000 662,000 128,325 (533,675) 

State grants 

 

- 64,825 64,825 

Local govenunent payment in lieu of taxes 12,000 12,000 5,873 (6,127) 

Charges for services 340,300 340,300 288229 (52,071) 

Fines 55,500 55,500 2,758 (52,742) 

Investment earnings 

 

- 167 167 

Rents and royalties 40,150 40,150 34,983 (5,167) 

Contributions ancl donations from private sources 

 

- 15,660 15,660 

Other revenues 

  

49,129 49,129 

Total revenues 2,539,700 2,539,700 2217,332 (322,368) 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

General government 885,830 885,830 832,635 53,195 

Public safety 1,197,690 1,197,690 1,043,150 154,540 

Highways and streets 1,296,347 1296,347 948,098 348,249 

Sanitation 305,000 305,000 257,537 47,463 

Cemeteries 1,500 1,500 

 

1,500 

Hea Ith - - 412 (412) 

Recreation 26,500 26,500 10,189 16,311 

Airport transportation 110,800 110,800 146,770 (35,970) 

1)ebt seiyice 

 

- 48,793 (48,793) 

Capital outlay 

  

104,173 (104,173) 

Total expenditures 3,823,60 3,823,667 3,391,757 431,910 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES (1,283,967) (1283,967) (1,174,425) 109,542 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Interfund transfers in 

 

- 22(4,729 2,204,729 

Proceeds of general capital asset disposals 

 

- 1,806 1,806 

Interfund transfers out 

 

- (1.025,971) (1,025,971) 

Total other Intancirig sources (uses) 

  

1268,885 1,268,885 

Net change in fund balances (1,283,967) (1,283,9(i7) 94,460 1,378,427 

Funcl balance at beginning of year 134,159 134,159 33,406 (100,753) 
Fund balance at end of year S (1,149,808) $ (1,149,808) $ 127,866 1,277,674 
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Original 

Budget 

Fi nal 

Budget Actual 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 

Taxes: 

    

Ad 1,alorern $ $ - $107,406 $ 107,406 
Tot al reve nues 

  

107,406 107,406 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

General government 

  

(160) 160 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

    

OVER EXPENDITURES 

  

107,566 107,566 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Interfund transfers out 

  

(107,406) (107,406) 

Net change in fund balances 

    

Fund balances at beginning of year 

  

1,000 1,000 

Fund balances at end of year 

  

$ 1,000 1,000 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - FIRE AD VALOREM FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Original 

B udg et 

Fi nal 

Budget Actual 

Vari ance 

Favorable 

( Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 

Taxes: 

  

Ad valorem $107,406 $ 107,406 

Other revenues 415 415 

Total revenues 107,821 107,821 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

haerfund transfers out (107,821) (1(17,821) 

Net change in fund balances 0 0 

Fund balances at beginning of year 822 822 

Fund balances at end of year 822 81? 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - STREET SALES TAX FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Original 

Budget 

Final 

Budget Actual 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 

Taxes: 

  

Ad Valorem S107,406 107,406 

Other revenues 415 415 

Total revenues 107,821 107,821 

OMER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

  

Interfund transfers out (107,821) (107,821) 

Net change in fund balances O O 

Fund balances at beginning of year 822 822 

Fund balances at end of year 822 822 
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR ME YEAR ENDED OF JUNE 30, 2022 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.310949% 0.344175% (1.328520% 0.288100% (1.284821% 0.259739% 0.315444% 

$ 1,344,360 $ 1,438,191 $ 1,378,233 S 1,2(15,244 $ 1,167,399 S 927,828 S 835,235 

$ 628,236 $ 589,676 $ 607,693 .$ 513,105 $ 508,788 $ 443,307 S 530,325 

213.99% 243.90% 226.80% 230.36% 229.45% 209.30% 157.49% 

64.52% 64.68% 63.94% 62.49% 62.11% 66.18% 73.99% 

Employer's proportion of the net pension 

liahility (asset) 

Employer's proportionate share of the net 

pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net 

pention liability (asset) as a percentage of 

its covered employee payroll 

Employer's proport on of the net iension 

liability (asset) 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is inteneded to show information for 10 years. Adclitiunal years will be clisplayecl as they become avai ab e. 
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSIEM 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF JUNE 30, 2022 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.040108% 0.072350% 0.069455% 0.060219% 0.049137% 0.035852% 0.028929% 

$ 370.691 657,059 $ 587,177 525,737 $ 460,552 $ 280.860 180,981 

$ 183,719 $ 225,943 $ 204,943 $ 179,772 $ 137,645 95,903 $ 81,307 

201.77% 290.81% 286.51% 292.45% 334.59% 292.86% ??7.59% 

70.94% 71.01% 71.89% 70.08% 66.04% 70.73% 75.10% 

Employer's proportion of the net pension 

liability (asset) 

Employer's proportionate share of the net 

pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net 

pention liability (asset) as a percentage of 

its covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportion of the net pension 

liability (asset) 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is inteneded to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FIREFIGH MRS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF JUNE 30, 2022 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.074040% 0.062552% (_1.060359% ( .059324% 0.077495% 0.078851% 0.076682% 

$ 513,212 $ 391,695 $ 347,190 $ 340,036 $ 506,887 $ 425,569 S 341,228 

$ 183.662 S 151,178 S 143,703 S 138,515 $ 174,733 $ 167.572 S 155,770 

279.43% 259.10% 241.60% 245.49% 290.09% 253.96% 219.06% 

72.61% 73.96% 74.76% 73.55% 68.16% 72.45% 76.02% 

Employer's proportion of the net 

pension liability (asset) 

Emplover's proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the 

net pention liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered employee 

payroll 

Employer's proportion of the net 

pension liability (asset) 

The amotuus presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is inteneded to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become mailable. 
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF JUNE 30, 2022 

 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
Contractually required contribution $195,650 $ 174,335 $153,315 $150,404 $119,029 $100,486 $ 87,553 

Contributions in relation to required 
contrihutions 

$195,650 $174,335 $153,315 $150,404 $119,029 $100,486 $ 87,553 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ - - $ - $ - $ - 

Employer's covered payroll $663,228 $628,236 $589,676 $607,693 $523,205 $508,788 $443,307 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
employee payroll 

29.50% 27.75% 26.00% 24.75°A) 22.75% 19.75% 19.75% 

Schedule is inteneded to show information for 10 years. Additional years ‘vill be displayed as tliey become available. 
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
Contractually required contribution $ 75,555 57,976 $ 72,866 $ 63,029 57,078 $ 40,605 $ 30,209 

Contributions in relation to required 
contributions $ 75,555 $ 57,976 $ 72,866 $ 63,029 $ 57,078 $ 40,605 $ 30,209 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

 

$ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ 

Employer's covered payroll $ 196,238 $ 182,003 $ 225,943 $ 204,970 $ 179,772 $ 137,645 $ 95,903 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
einployee payroll 38.50% 31.85% 32.25% 30.75% 31.75% 29.50% 31.50% 

Schedule is inteneded to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
FIREFIGH FERS' RETIREMENT SYS 11.M 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF JUNE 30, 2022 

 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
Contractually required contribution $ 72,605 $ 51,152 $ 40,063 $ 38,082 $ 34,975 $ 47,615 $ 49,015 

C'ontrihutions in relation to required 
contributions $ 72,605 $ 51,152 $ 40,063 $ 38,082 $ 34,975 $ 47.615 49,015 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

 

$ - $ - $ - $ - - 

Employer's covered payroll $ 225,131 $ 183,662 $151,178 $ 143,703 $ 138,515 $ 174,733 $ 167,572 

C'ontributions as a percentage of 
covered employee payToll 32.25% 27.85% 26.50% 26.50% 75.75% 27.25% 79.25% 

Schedule is inteneded to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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TOVVN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISLANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID COUNCILPERSONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF JUNE 30, 2022 

Devin R. Flowers 
James W. Ginn 
Nia E. Johnson 
Robbie A. Siadek 

Aaron Stringer 

Total 

8,200 
8,200 
8,200 
8,200 

8,200 
41,000  
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TOVVN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS 
AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OF JUNE 30, 2022 

Salary 60,000 

Medicare 837 
Retirement 17,640 
Health insurance 8,678 
Workers' compensation insurance 3,356 
Travel 173 

Reimbursernents 197 

Total $ 90,881 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR NAME/ CFDA 

PASS-THROUGH 
GRANTOR'S 

NUMBER 
FEDERAL 

EXPENDITURES PROGRAM l'IlLE NUMBER 

Other Programs: 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 

URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Passed through Office of the Governor, DiNtsion of Administration: 

   

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 2000562601 $ 521,108 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

   

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 N/A P8,125 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

   

Coronavinis State and Local Fiscal Recowry Fluids 21.027 N/A 299,776 

Total other programs 

  

949,209 

Total federal expenditures 

  

$ 949,209 

Notes: 
General 
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal award programs of the Town of 
Jonesboro as defined in Note 1 to the financial statements. All federal award programs received directly from federal 
agencies, as well as federal awards through other government agencies, are included on the schedule. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is 
described in Note 1 to the Town's financial statements. The infonnation in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements JOr Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, sorne amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts in or used in the preparation of the financial statements. 

Indirect Cost Rate 
The Town has elected to use the 10% de rninirnis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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BOSCH & 
STATHAM 
Certified Pubiic iAccouncants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable James Harris, Mayor 
and Honorable Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, issued by the Louisiana Legislative 
Auditor; the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund, of 
the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana (the Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the 
fmancial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated September 30, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered the Town's internal control over 
fmancial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town's intemal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs as items 2022-002, 2022-003, 2022-004, 2022-005, 2022-006, 2022-007, 2022-009, 2022-010, 2022-011, 2022-
012, and 2022-013 that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's fmancial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the fmancial statements. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-001, 2022-005, 2022-006, 2022-008, and 2022-010. 

The Town's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town's response to the 
fmdings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs. The 
Town's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fmancial statements 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of this report may be limited, under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, it is issued by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

604d & Statitam 
Ruston, Louisiana 
September 30, 2023 
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BOSCH & 
STATHAM 
Certified Pubiic iAccouncants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable James Harris, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

the Town 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
identified as subject to audit in the OIVIB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of the Town of Jonesboro's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Town of Jonesboro's major 
federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Town of Jonesboro complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal program for the year ended 
June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Town of Jonesboro and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town of Jonesboro's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, 
rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Town of Jonesboro's federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Town of 
Jonesboro's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
intemal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is 
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user of the report on compliance about Town of Jonesboro's compliance with the requirements of each major federal 
program as a whole. 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Uniform Guidance 
June 30, 2022 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and 
the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding Town of Jonesboro's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of Town of Jonesboro's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Jonesboro's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of this report may be limited, 
under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, it is issued by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

6044 & Seadta02 

Ruston, Louisiana 

September 30, 2023 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

I. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unniodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the Town of 

Jonesboro, Louisiana, (the Entity) were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

2. Eleven tnaterial weaknesses disclosed during the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 

Independent Auditor's Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And Other 

Matters Based On An Audit of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing 

Standards. 

3. Four instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Entity, which are required to be 

reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No management letter was issued. 

IL FINDINGS 

The following should be considered when reading the findings: 

1. It should be noted that the audit period began July 1. 2021, and ended June 30, 2022. 

2. The contracted accountant withdrew their services as of March 2022 due to alleged actions of Mayor Leslie 

Thompson. 

3. The report was due to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor on December 31, 2022. 

4. Mayor Leslie Thompson's term ended December 31, 2022. 

5. Mayor James "Spike" Harris' term began Jantialy 2023. 

6. The majority of the audit data requested by the auditor \vas provided to the auditor after December 31, 2022. 

2022-001 Noncompliance with Public Bid Law 

First reported  

2015 

Type 

Noncompliance 

Condition 

Since the 2015 audit. we have reported a finding for failure to comply with the bid law with respect to the purchase of 
fuel. For the 2021 audit, we requested an opinion from the Town Attorney. He was unable to state that the Town has 
complied with the bid law. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Criteria 

Louisiana Revised Statute 38:2212.1 states in part, "A.(1)(a) All purchases of any materials or supplies exceeding the 
sum of thirty thousand dollars to be paid out of public funds shall be advertised and let by contract to the lowest 
responsible bidder who has bid according to the specifications as advertised, and no such purchase shall be made 
except as provided in this Part. (b) However, purchases of ten thousand dollars or more, but less than thirty thousand 
dollars, shall be made by obtaining not less than three telephone or facsimile quotations. A written confirmation of the 
accepted offer shall be obtained and made a part of the purchase file. If quotations lower than the accepted quotation 
are received, the reasons for their rejection shall be recorded in the purchase file." The statute also states in part, "C.(1) 
Whenever a public entity desires to purchase technical equipment, apparatus, machinery, materials, or supplies of a 
certain type and such purchases are clearly in the public interest, the public entity may specify a particular brand, make, 
or manufacturer in the specifications let out for public bid as provided by this Part. If a particular brand, make, or 
manufacturer is specified, the model or catalog number also shall be specified. (2) Wherever in specifications the name 
of a certain brand, make, manufacturer, or defmite specification is utilized, the specifications shall state clearly that 
they are used only to denote the quality standard of product desired and that they do not restrict bidders to the specific 
brand, make, manufacturer, or specification named; that they are used only to set forth and convey to prospective 
bidders the general style, type, character, and quality of product desired; and that equivalent products will be 
acceptable." 

Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20, part A states, "All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of their open 
meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be governed 
by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited to: (1) 
The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or absent 
(3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, of any 
votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes." 

Cause 

Management believed that the fact that the vendor owns the dispensing equipment meant that bids were not 
required. 

Effect 

It appears that the Town did not comply with state law. The Town may have paid more for fuel than necessary. 

Recommendation  

We recommend that management ensure that the public bid law is followed when making any purchases. In unusual 
circumstances, legal counsel should be consulted. If considered necessary, an Attorney General opinion should be 
requested. 

Management's Response 

See management' s corrective action plan. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

2022-002 Failure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 

First reported 

2016 

Type 

Material Weakness 

Condition  

We selected twenty-five disbursements haphazardly. Cbrrent management was not in office during the audit period. Therefore, 
they were searching through records that they inherited. 

Eight out of twenty-five disbursements were not supported by an invoice or other documentation. Documentation for 
eight out of twenty-five disbursements should have included evidence that a responsible employee acknowledged 
receipt of the goods or services. Two out of eight such disbursements did not include such evidence. One out of 
twenty-five checks were not signed by anyone but still cleared the bank. 

Excluding certain types of transactions and certain recurring transactions, we also selected disbursements for each 
fund that were greater than a selected threshold based on the fund's expenditure level. We selected a total of four 
disbursements. "Not applicable" is marked if we were unable to test an attribute because an invoice could not be 
found. Below is a summary of the results of the test: 

 

Not 
Applicable No Exce tion Exce tion Total 

Supported by invoice or other documentation 0 2 2 4 
Supported by documentation of the receipt of goods 
or services 

2 1 1 4 

Properly authorized 2 2 0 4 
Properly classified 2 2 0 4 
Check signed by authorized personnel 0 4 0 4 

One of the checks was issued for $82,463, to a contractor for an "emergency repairs to water well 5". Although the 
check follows policy, the policy is not adequately designed as it does not address emergency situations, thresholds for 
larger payment amounts, nor the proper order of purchasing steps. The purchase order provided was dated after the 
expense was incurred. The invoice from the vendor shows a "verbal" purchase order from an employee authorizing 
the work. The purchase order was not created until 5 business days after the invoice date. 

Criteria 

Basic internal control procedures include: 1) Requiring a purchase order prior to incurring expenses on behalf of the 
Town and 2) Requiring signatures to document goods or services were received and 3) Requiring signatures by 
authorized personnel on all checks. The Town's purchasing policy requires: 1) Purchase orders to be obtained with the 
Mayor's signature and filed with the invoice and 2) Invoices to be signed by a responsible employee. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Cause 

The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 

Effect 

The Town did not comply with its own policies. Unauthorized purchases could be made. The Town could pay for 
goods or services that it did not receive. 

Recommendation 

We recommend: 

1. That employees be reminded of the policies and their purposes. 
2. That employees be notified that policies will be enforced. 
3. That checks to vendors are not prepared or signed if the documentation is not appropriate. 

Proper internal control includes the environment, risk assessment, information and communication, and monitoring. It 
is imperative that all employees who are involved in purchasing in any manner believe that management expects the 
policies to be followed. 

Management's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-003 Overtime Pay 

First reported 

2016 

Type 

Material Weakness 

Condition 

The payment of overtime appears to be excessive. 

During fiscal year 2016, the Town paid employees for overtime hours a total of $151,838 versus $109,059 in fiscal 
year 2015. The following is a summary by department of those costs: 

Department Hours Amount 
Administration 691.65 $16,998 
Public Works 5,998.93 93,779 
Police 866.33 16,491 
Fire 1,291.00 24,570 
Total 8,847.91 $151,838 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

During fiscal year 2017, the Town paid employees for overtime hours a total of $136,764 versus $151,838 in 2016. 
The following is a summary of those costs: 

Department Hours Amount 
Administration 406.67 $9,992 
Public Works 5,547.87 85,737 
Police 806.58 15,309 
Fire 1,348.00 25,725 
Total 8,109.12 $136,763  

During fiscal year 2018, 43 out of approximately 68 employees were paid overtime. Typically, an employee's annual 
hours would be 2,080 calculated as 40 hours per week times 52 weeks; however, 6 employees were paid for greater 
than 2500 hours for the year. For 12 employees, overtime was greater than 20% of their regular salary. For 2 employees 
of the Water/Sewer Department, overtime pay represented 52% ($18k over $35k) and 53% ($16k over $3 lk) of their 
regular salaries. Overtime pay increased from $113,000 in 2017 to $144,000 in 2018. Of total overtime, $77,000 was 
paid to public works employees. 

During fiscal year 2019, 52 out of approximately 68 employees were paid overtime. Typically, an employee's annual 
hours would be 2,080 calculated as 40 hours per week times 52 weeks; however, 5 employees were paid for greater 
than 2500 hours for the year. For 22 employees, overtime was greater than 20% of their regular salary. For 2 employees 
of the Water/Sewer Department, overtime pay represented 62% ($14k over $22k) and 97% ($13k over $23k) of their 
regular salaries. Overtime pay for 2017, 2018, and 2019 was $113,000, $144,000, and $149,504, respectively. Of total 
overtime, $68,416 was paid to public works employees. 

During fiscal year 2020, 51 of approximately 83 employees employed during the year received overtime and/or double 
time. We noted 4 of the Town's employees surpassed 2,550 hours worked during the year. The total overtime/double 
time worked increased from the prior year with the majority of the increase being due to public works employees. 
Personnel expenses in the Utility Fund increased from $353,108 to $518,563, or 40% from 2019. 

During fiscal year 2021, 35 of approximately 57 employees employed during the year received overtime and/or double 
time. We noted 5 of the Town's employees surpassed 2,550 hours worked during the year. The total overtime/double 
time worked did decrease 7% from the prior year while total compensation decreased 6%. Personnel expenses in the 
Utility Fund increased from $518,563 to $619,450, or 19% from 2020. 

During fiscal year 2022, 145 employees were compensated, 56 employees received compensation for 4,448 overtime 
hours; 3 employees received compensation for 257 double time hours. Total compensation was $1,493,568, including 
$97,926 for the sum of overtime and double time compensation. 

Criteria 

Overtime pay is generally limited to those instances when it is imperative that work be performed outside of regular 
work hours. Basic internal control practices include requiring pre-authorization to work overtime and monitoring of 
overtime costs by a supervisory employee to minimize it where possible. 

Article VII Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Cause 

The auditor was unable to determine the exact cause of the condition. Controls are not sufficiently designed to prevent 
the costs. Reasons given to the auditor by management for some of the overtime hours include: water and sewer repair 
emergencies, the need to enter meter readings manually, and the need to work early or late to review time sheets to 
submit them to the payroll clerk on time. Over the years, we have received multiple complaints by multiple sources 
alleging that water department employees intentionally delay some repairs until the weekend to increase their overtime 
pay. 

Effect 

The Town may have paid more than necessary to provide services because hours did not need to be paid at overtime 
rates or the work did not need to be performed after hours. Excessive amounts of overtime cost generally mean that 
the staff is too small, there are inefficiencies, and/or there is abuse and/or fraud. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that management evaluate payroll costs in relation to workload and needs. Controls should be revised to 
ensure that overtime is authorized before it is incurred and approved before it is paid. Supervisors should ensure that 
work is properly prioritized to prevent employees from working overtime unless it is necessary. Additionally, we 
recommend that management consider using seasonal and part-time workers. These workers would earn at regular 
rates as opposed to 150% of regular pay rates. 

Management's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-004 Utility Billing Procedures 

First reported 

2016 

Type 

Material Weakness 

Condition  

For the fiscal year 2017 audit, procedures we performed included the following: 

• We inquired of the Town Clerk, various employees, vendors, and customers regarding meter reading and 
billing procedures. We were told by multiple sources that the meters are not read and that bills arrive too late for 
customers to pay on time. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

• We selected a sample of four meters to locate and read to compare to the last billed reading. We read three 
out of four meters. Town employees could not locate the fourth meter. None of the three readings were consistent with 
the previous billed readings. One of the four meters was for a commercial lawn watering system, yet the billed 
consumption has not fluctuated since January 2016. Beginning May 1, 2014, the customer was billed 110,000 gallons 
for three months, 117,000 for one month, 108,000 for one month, 106,000 for two months, 105,000 for two months, 
100,000 for five months, 102,000 for four months, 103,000 for two months, then 102,000 from January 1, 2016, 
through April 1, 2018 (28 months). 
• We inspected the meter reader's records. He records readings in a notebook. It appeared that readings are 
only documented for cutoffs and similar situations, not for regular readings. There are approximately 2,000 customers 
on the system. It seems that it would be physically impossible for one person to read the meters in time to submit the 
readings to the Clerk to be entered for billing. 
• We reviewed selected customer account histories. We noted that the billed consumption was the same for 
many months and sometimes years. 
• The Town Clerk demonstrated how she fills out a screen in the billing software to enter a reading for every 
customer in the system. This task was given as a significant reason given for the Clerk's need for overtime. However, 
sources tell us that the outsourced billing service can bill the previous reading by instruction alone. Entering the 
amounts for every customer does not appear to be necessary. 
• We noted through interviews with various customers and others that bills were often mailed to customers 
after the standard billing date. Management blamed the outsourced billing service. It appears that the fault lies with 
the Town not notifying the outsourced billing service to proceed with billing in a timely manner This seems 
especially odd since none of the meters are being read. We were initially told that meters were being read manually 
Later we were told that the meters were being read on a rotation basis whereby all meters were read every couple of 
months. The Town Clerk ultimately admitted that the meters were not being read and that the Mayor was aware that 
they were not being read. 

For the fiscal year 2018 audit, the results were much the same. We again received allegations that meters are not read, 
customers are billed the same amount month after month, and bills are mailed too late for timely payments. Our 
inspection of account histories and the results of other procedures are consistent with these allegations. 

We did not identify any significant improvements for the fiscal year 2019, 2020, 2021, or 2022 audits. 

Criteria 

Policies and procedures for utility billing should ensure that customers are billed for the services they use at authorized 
rates. 

Article VII Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 

The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. The Town has invested in a system that would read 
the meters electronically in a short amount of time. While the Town was under Fiscal Administration, the Fiscal 
Administrator was systematically updating meters that were not working with the automated reader. Had the process 
been continued, it seems all of the meters could now be read electronically. It appears that this process would have 
taken an hour or two at most. 
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Effect 

The Town cannot be billing for actual usage. This could result in under or overbilling customers and over or 
understating the Town's revenue. The billing process may be taking longer than necessary, which may be costing the 
town in payroll expenses. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that management devise a plan to begin reading meters every month even if the meters have to be 
read manually. Meters that are not working properly must be replaced as soon as possible. 

Management's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-005 Noncompliance with Budget Act 

First reported 

2016 

Type 

Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition  

For 2021, we noted the following exceptions: 

1. According to the minutes, the 2021 budgets were adopted June 2020. There were no amendments. We noted no 
budget message. The minutes of meetings did not reflect a budget hearing. 

2. Per the Budgetary Comparison schedule: 
a. The Fire Ad Valorem Special Revenue Fund budget did not include transfers out of $100,877. 
b. The Street Ad Valorem Special Revenue Fund budget did not include transfers out of $100,501. 
c. The Street Sales Tax Revenue Fund budget did not include transfers out of $772,507. 

For 2022, we noted the following exceptions: 

1. The minutes concerning budget actions were difficult to follow. 
2. The budget was introduced before the beginning of the fiscal year but was vetoed by the former mayor. The veto 

was overridden after the year began. 
3. According to the minutes, the 2022 budgets were adopted July 2022. 
4. We noted no budget message. 
5. The minutes of meetings did not reflect a budget hearing. 
6. No budgets were adopted for the three special revenue funds. 
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Criteria 

Section 406 of the Lawrason Act, states in part, "A. (3) Any act of the Board of Aldermen which would provide for 
the appropriation of funds, the incurrence of debt, or the issuance of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness shall be 
by ordinance." 

Section 1313 of the Budget Act also states in part, "The chief executive or administrative officer shall retain and file 
certified copies of the adopted budget, budget adoption instrument, duly authorized budget amendments, and copies of 
supporting schedules and correspondence related to the budget at the domicile of the governing authority." 

Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20, part A states, "All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of their open 
meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be governed 
by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited to: (1) 
The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or absent 
(3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, of any 
votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes." 

Cause 

The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 

Effect 

The Town's budget file does not clearly demonstrate the Town's compliance with the Budget Act. Controls did not 
operate effectively to prevent noncompliance. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that management consult with the Town Attomey to revise procedures to ensure that the Town 
complies with laws affecting the budget process. 

Management's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-006 Financial Statements Issued After Due Date 

First reported  

2016 

Type 

Material Weakness, Noncompliance 
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Condition  

The audit report was submitted after the statutory due date. 

Criteria 

State law requires the Town to submit to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor audited fmancial statements within six 
months of year end. 

Cause 

See other fmdings. 

Effect 

When an entity is late filing its report, the entity can be placed on the LLA's noncompliance list. Being placed on the 
list results in an entity receiving no funds from the State until the entity is removed from the list. Management cannot 
work in a timely manner to resolve internal control deficiencies and noncompliance with laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants identified by the auditor. 

Recommendation 

We recommend the following: 

1. Implement recommendations in other findings. 
2. Clearly communicate proper lines of authority and responsibility to all employees. 
3. Ensure that the internal control system design includes proper monitoring, supervision, and review and ensure that 

such monitoring, supervision, and review is taking place. 
4. Ensure that management is present and actively monitoring operations and supervising employees. 
5. Engage the outside CPA to monitor accounting monthly to ensure that proper accounting and control 

procedures are followed. 
6. Ensure that the outside CPA is allowed access to complete year-end adjustments and submit data to the 

auditor by August 31st each year. 

Mannement's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-007 Lack of Segregation of Duties in Collections 

First reported 

2017 

Type 

Material Weakness 
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Condition 

During the years ended June 30, 2017, through 2022, some employees performed incompatible duties. The acting 
Town Clerk received collections from the cashiers, prepared the deposits, took the deposit to the bank, and prepared the 
daily summary of collections at town hall. The tax collector prepared tax bills, collected tax payments, posted tax 
payments in the tax software, and managed the tax sale. Additionally, during fiscal year 2017-2018, due to a fiscal year 
2016 audit fmding, the police chief moved collections of fmes from town hall to the police department. A better 
segregation of duties is achieved when collections are at town hall since the police department writes citations and 
accounts for citation numbers. Collections were moved back to town hall beginning 2022. 

We did not identify any control activities that mitigated the risk increase caused by the lack of proper segregation of 
duties. 

Criteria 

Paragraph 10.13 of the Green Book reads in part (emphasis added), "Segregation of duties helps prevent fraud, waste, 
and abuse in the internal control system. If segregation of duties is not practical within an operational process because 
of limited personnel or other factors, management designs alternative control activities to address the risk of fraud, 
waste, or abuse in the operational process. Management considers the need to separate control activities related to 
authority, custody, and accounting of operations  to achieve adequate segregation of duties. In particular, 
segregation of duties can address the risk of management override. Management override circumvents existing control 
activities and increases fraud risk." 

Cause 

The acting Town Clerk assumed her duties due to lack of available personnel to assign selected duties to. The tax 
collector collected tax payments because she believed it helped her ensure an accurate accounting. The police 
department collected payments of fmes due to the police chief s concem about collections issues highlighted in the 
fiscal year 2016 audit. 

Effect 

Improper segregation of duties without compensating controls gives one individual too much power and thus increases 
the risk for fraud, waste, and abuse. 

Recommendation 

Our 2017 recommendation read as follows: 

Our recommendation in the finding regarding failure to produce financial statements could also address the lack of 
segregation of duties. The outside accountant's role could include monitoring of these activities. However, we 
recommend that cashiers at town hall be responsible for all collections. 

In the prior year, the outside accmmtant had taken over some of the duties such as posting deposits, paying vendors, 
and processing payroll. As of June 30, 2022, some of those duties were back inside town hall. 

Management's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 
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2022-008 Omitted Supplementary Information Required by State Law 

First reported 

2021 

Tvpe 

Noncompliance 

Condition 

The Justice System Schedules were not included with the financial statements. 

Criteria 

Per the LLA's website: 

"Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session (R.S. 24:515.2) requires the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) and 
the Louisiana Supreme Court (LSC) to develop a uniform reporting format for local and state entities that assess, 
collect, or receive revenue from pre- or post-adjudication costs, fines, and fees. The uniform reporting format must 
include, at a minimum, the amounts of all pre- and post-adjudication court costs, fines, and fees assessed or imposed; 
the amounts collected; the amounts outstanding; the amounts retained; the amounts disbursed; and the amounts 
received from disbursements." 

"To satisfy the requirements of the Act, the LLA and LSC have developed two reporting schedules (Schedules) to be 
included in audit reports, review/attest reports, and compilation reports. Schedules are not required for Justices of the 
Peace or Constables, nor are they required if the entity does not have any amounts to report (i.e., blank schedules are 
not required). 

These Schedules must be included in reports submitted by entities with a December 31, 2020, or later fiscal year end. 
The Schedules are considered to be Supplementary Information, requiring an in-relation opinion for audit reports, and 
must be completed on the cash basis. All amounts on the Schedules should be entered as positive numbers. 

Each Schedule includes two six-month columns to allow the LLA to reconcile between collecting/disbursing and 
receiving entities with different fiscal year ends. The two six-month columns should reflect each six months of the 
entity's fiscal year activities (e.g. a December 31, 2020 fiscal year end report should include columns reflecting 
January 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020 and July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, respectively." 

Cause 

Management was unable to provide the required information to the accountant in time to prepare the schedules for 
inclusion in the audited financial statements. Management considers it most important to submit the fmancial 
statements to the LLA since they were due December 31, 2022. 

Effect 

It appears that the Town did not comply with state law. 
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Recommendation 

See the recommendation under 2(122-006. 

Management' s Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-009 Accounting Errors 

First reported 

2022 

Type 

Material Weakness 

Condition  

Entries were made to correct the following errors: 

1. General ledgers for individual funds did not balance. The amounts required to balance the funds were: 
a. General Fund - $837,153 
b. Street Ad Valorem Fund - $216 
c. Fire Ad Valorem Fund - $139,776 
d. Street Sales Tax Fund - $789,337 
e. Utility Fund - $91,744 

2. Beginning equity did not agree to prior audited fmancial statements by the following amounts: 
a. General Fund - $753,786 
b. Street Ad Valorem Fund - $160 
c. Fire Ad Valorem Fund - $415 
d. Street Sales Tax Fund - $1,079,831 
e. Utility Fund - $326,619 

3. Prior year accrual balances had not been reversed 
4. Errors were made in classifying revenue 
5. Donated vehicles worth $15,000 were not recorded in revenue and expenditures 
6. Two transfers of funds of $95,692, recorded with a date of 6/7/22 that did not occur until 7/7/22 
7. Transfer was not recorded to reflect that the General Fund paid $35,500 for a tractor and loader for the utility fund 
8. Utility Fund (Enterprise Fund) capital asset additions of $79,000 were recorded as expenses. 
9. Earned revenue of $299,776 not recognized 

Criteria 

Generally accepted accounting standards set forth requirements for recognition of revenues and expenditures and the 
presentation of financial statements for local governments. 
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Cause 

The administration allegedly failed to cooperate with the accounting firm and committed acts that caused the firm to 
disengage from the Town in approximately March 2022. The former Town Clerk was not trained to perform the 
bookkeeping on her own. Therefore, the books were not properly reviewed and corrected. The former administration 
left office without ensuring that the audit was completed or even ensuring that the bookkeeping was complete. The 
report was due to the LLA on December 31, 2022. 

Effect 

The report was not submitted to the LLA as required by the state audit law. The audit could not be completed without 
proper closure of the Town's books. 

Recommendation 

As of the date of the auditor's report, the Town has again engaged the CPA firm to assist with bookkeeping and 
prepare fmancial statements. We recommend that a CPA firm be continuously engaged for consultation and to oversee 
the bookkeeping and the preparation of monthly and annual financial statements. 

Management's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-010 Capital Assets — Lack of Controls 

First reported  

2022 

Type 

Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 

Former Mayor Leslie Thompson is alleged to have used magnetic placards on the Mayor's car owned by the town to 
conceal when the car was being used for personal reasons. Mayor Thompson is also alleged to have used the vehicle for 
personal out of state travel. 

There is no licensed CDL driver for Town vehicles. 

The depreciation schedule does not include sufficient information (such as make, model, year, and serial number) to 
allow for identification when items need to be removed from the depreciation schedule. 

Some vehicles were not properly registered and/or insured. 
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Criteria 

LRS 24:515 B (1), Accounts of offices, boards, commissions, agencies, and departments; records of general fixed 
assets states the following: 

B.(1) The head of every auditee subject to examination and audit under the provisions of R.S. 24:513(A) shall 
maintain records of all land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, and any other general fixed 
assets which were purchased or otherwise acquired, and for which such entity is accountable. The records shall 
include information as to the date of purchase of such property or equipment, the initial cost, the disposition, if any, 
the purpose of such disposition, and the recipient of the property or equipment disposed of. When ascertaining the 
exact cost, exact selling price, or any other relevant information on property or equipment obtained prior to January 1, 
1980, creates a hardship on the auditee, such agency may provide estimates of the information. The records shall be 
made available to the legislative auditor or, when the audit is conducted by a certified public accountant, the certified 
public accountant, at the time of examination and audit of the auditee, or any such time as the legislative auditor or 
certified public accountant requests the copies of such records be furnished. The records shall not include office 
supplies. Said records shall be used as one of the criteria in determining the rating which the auditee will be given. 

(2) The records required to be maintained by Paragraph (1) hereof for state government shall be prepared on forms 
and conform to procedures developed and established by the division of administration in accordance with the 
Administrative Procedure Act. . Article VII, Section 14, prohibits the donation of public property or the use of such 
property. 

Common accounting practice includes including sufficient information on the depreciation schedule to allow 
management to physically track the asset and to properly record disposal of the asset. 

Cause 

The former administration did not design or follow proper a proper internal control system to prevent errors and 
ensure proper accounting and prevention of noncompliance with state law. 

Effect 

Assets were not properly accounted for and were at risk for theft and misuse. Mayor Harris was unable to determine 
whether all assets were still present. Some vehicles were not properly registered and insured. 

Recommendation 

Management performed a thorough physical inventory during our audit fieldwork. We recommend the following: 

1. Adjust the depreciation schedule to the physical inventory. 
2. Audit titles and insurance coverage to ensure that all vehicles are properly registered and ensured. 
3. Evaluate written policies and procedures to ensure they are properly designed. 
4. Communicate requirements, policies and procedures to appropriate personnel. 

Management's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 
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2022-011 No Fraud or Theft Bond or Insurance Policy 

First reported 

2022 

Type 

Material Weakness, Compliance 

Condition  

The Town had no fraud or theft bond or insurance policy to cover fraud or theft in effect as of June 30, 2022. 

Criteria 

The Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures require us to test that there is such coverage. Having such coverage is a best 
practice. 

Cause 

We could not determine why there was no coverage. 

Effect 

The Town is at risk for loss of funds. 

Recommendation 

Per the LLA's FAQs, "there is no specified minimum amount in Louisiana law; however, the political subdivision 
should ensure that any bond is good and sufficient. 

Factors the political subdivision should consider in setting a surety bond amount include, but are not limited to: 

• The amount of money the employee will handle; 

• The likelihood of fraud, waste, and abuse given the internal controls in place; 

• The amount of insurance coverage for any potential loss, if any, and the amount such deductible; and 

• The level of material impact any potential risk of loss would have on the financial position/stability of the political 
subdivision. 

The political subdivision should consult with its legal counsel and its insurer to review the various factors applicable 
to their situation and risks of loss. Any policy developed requiring such bond, should generally be adopted through 
ordinance.." 
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Mannement's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

2022-012 Bills Paid Late 

First reported 

2022 

Type 

Material Weakness 

Condition  

As of June 30, 2022, the Town's accounts payable including the following amounts that were past due: 

1. Garbage pickup — May and June service - $35,014 
2. Electricity - $75,597 

Criteria 

Best practices include paying costs in a timely manner. Failing to do so indicates poor internal control and/or poor 
fmancial condition. 

Cause 

Based on comparison to prior years and the budget, it appears that overspending was causing cash flow shortages. 

Effect 

The Town may be overspending which increases the risk that other issues will develop including inability to provide 
services, vendors refusing credit and a shortage of employees. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that management consider the budget as a critical tool for determining when spending is possible. All 
bills for critical services must be paid on time. 

Mannement's Response 

See management's corrective action plan. 

79 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

2022-013 Authorized Pay Not Properly Documented 

First reported 

2022 

TThe 

Material Weakness 

Condition  

Current management could not fmd evidence of authorized pay for 3 out of 5 employees tested. 

Criteria 

When employees are hired, management should document their starting rate of pay as approved by authorized 
personnel. Changes in rates should be documented in the same manner The documentation serves as authorization for 
the payroll clerk to establish the payroll rate. The lack of documentation could lead to errors in actual pay and makes 
it impossible to audit. 

Cause 

It is not clear why the documentation was not readily available. 

Effect 

Employees may have been over or underpaid. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that written policies and procedures be evaluated and revised to include proper procedures to 
authorize and document salaries and pay rates. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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2021-001 Noncompliance with Public Bid Law 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2022-001. 

2021-002 Failure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2022-002. 

2021-003 Overtime Pay 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2022-003. 

2021-004 Utility Billing Procedures 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2022-004. 

2021-005 Noncompliance with Budget Act 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2022-005. 

2021-006 Financial Statements Issued After Due Date 

Status 
Repeated as Finding 2022-006. 

2021-007 Lack of Segregation of Duties 

Status 

Repeated as Finding 2022-007 

2021-008 Bank Balances at One Bank were Not Fully Covered by FDIC and Pledged Securities 

Status 

Cleared 

2021-009 Omitted Supplementary Information Required by State Law 

Status  
Repeated as Finding 2022-008. 
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Dr. James "Spike" Harris, Mayor 
Telephone: 318-259-2385 
Fax: 318-259-4177 

TOWN OF JONESBORO 

September 30, 2023 P. O. Box 610 
128 Allen Avenue 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 71251 

Bosch & Statham, LLC 
Post Office Box 2377 
Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 

In connection with your engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures to certain control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs). for the fiscal period 
July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, we confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following 
representations made to you during your engagement. 

I. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, including written policies 
and procedures; board or finance committee; bank reconciliations; collections; non-payroll disbursements; 
credit/debit/fuel/purchasing cards; travel and travel-related expense reimbursement; contracts; payroll and 
personnel; ethics; debt service; and other areas (should be customk.ed by entity, as applicable) 

Yes El No O 

2. For the fiscal period July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, the C/C areas were administered in accorclance 
with the best practices criteria presented in the SAUPs. 

Yes No CI 

3. We are responsible for selecting the criteria and procedures and for determining that such criteria and 
procedures are appropriate for our purposes. 

Yes El No El 

4. We have provided you with access to all records that we believe are relevant to the C/C areas and the agreed-
upon procedures. 

Yes El No O 

5. We have disclosed to you all known matters contradicting the results of the procedures performed in C/C 
areas. 

Yes El No El 

6. We have disclosed to you any communications from regulatory agencies, internal auditors, other independent 
practitioners or consultants. and others affecting the C/C areas, including communications received between 
June 30, 2022, and December-20-;20-22-. September 30, 2023. 

Yes Z No CI 



7. We represent that the listing of bank accounts for the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. We 
also represent that we have identified and disclosed to you our main operating account. 

Yes El No 

8. We represent that the listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No D 

9. We represent that the listing of collection locations for the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes No D 

10. We represent that the listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period that we provided to you 
is complete. 

Yes 0 No D 

11. We represent that the non-payroll disbursement transaction population for each location that processes 
payments for the fiscal period that we provided to you is coniplete. 

Yes El No 

12. We represent that the listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for the 
fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the 
cards. that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes ID No O 

13. We represent that the listing of all travel and tiavel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal period 
that VN'e provided to you is complete. 

Yes El No O 

14. We represent that tlie listing of all agreements/contracts (or active vendors) for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal 
period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes El No O 

15. We represent tbat the listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period that we 
provided to you is complete. 

Yes 23 No El 

16. We represent that the listing of emplovees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes IQ No O 

17. We represent that the employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health 
insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been paid, and associated forms have been 
filed, by required deadlines during the fiscal period. 



Yes El No O 

18. We represent that the listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period that we provided to you is 
complete. 

Yes LI No O 

19. We represent that the listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period that we pmvided to 
you is complete. 

Yes El No O 

20. We represent that the listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period that we 
provided to you is complete. 

Yes El No O 

21. We are not aware of anv material misstatements in the C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

Yes El No El 

22. We have diselosed to you any matters we are aware of that are related to the matters listed above or to 
cornpliance with state laws. 

Yes El No O 

23. We have responded fully to all inquiries made by you during the engagement. 

Yes (81 No O 

24. We have disclosed to you all known events that have occurred subsequent to June 30,2022. that would have 
a material effect on the C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, or would require adjustment to or modification of 
the results of the agreed-upon procedures. 

Yes El No O 

The previous responses have been made to the best of our belief and knouledge. 

Signature 

 

Title Mavor 



 

BOSCH & 
STATHAM 
Certified Pubiic iAccouncants 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Goveming Board of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 
2021, through June 30, 2022. The Town of Jonesboro's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs. 

The Town of Jonesboro (Entity) has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet 
the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLA's 
SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged 
that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. 
The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs 
of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are 
appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each of the 
following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations: 

W @ obtot.i:ned. cunth (Aupecteth thei writtovvpaUci:e4(  cuncliprocedAkr@k 
a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

We, noted. no-- ew.cept-Com: 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; (3) the 
preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure 
compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and 
price quotes. 

The. Town )1epollzy not iAcIALcie. elentonts,  (1), (2), (4), or (5). 
c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

me, rownLy paUcy did. not iwycluktei proce4aincdr o f cli4bues@vnentle. 
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d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures should 
include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency 
fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

The, Tow yoe poUcy d id. vtOt adare•WprepOLIPOLUCTlet/ of depositk 
e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance 

records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee(s) rate of pay or 
approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

The. To tv n)s, policy does, not adequately addrew calithe. requieed. elements< 
f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and conditions, 

(3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

rheirawyCkpolicy does,  not addreme elevnents,  (2) or (5). 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be 
controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of 
statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

The. Tawn:lepolky cLi:th not element (4). 
h) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category 

of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

We noted. no- e4e...cepuome. 
i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111-1121, (2) 

actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and 
(4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were 
notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

The, Taw vi.:1( polky doe4e not Cnclktae, arty of thei reqbared. e/emtents< 
Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EIVIIVIA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Noted. no-policy. 
k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of critical 

data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated from 
the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on 
all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) 
identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

Noted. no-policy. 

86 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 
Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures, 2022 
Page 87 of 101 

1) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

svicuabhara.ament poUcy wow( note& 

Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling 
legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

abtal..ned. and. rex/Lowed/the. lyoard; mi.nutes, for the.fi4 cal/perikYdx 
a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in 

accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

We. noted/the. board. met at lealt monthly. 
b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 

referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly budget-to-
actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds7, and semi-annual budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on all 
special revenue funds7. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the nonprofit accounting model, 
observe that the minutes referenced or included fmancial activity relating to public funds8 if those public 
funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

We. noted. none. of the. miNtate4e had. any reference. or iwyclktded. inovith/y 
lnuiget-to-- actual's,. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund balance in 
the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit 
report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a 
formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

We. obtcanted. the. pri.or year audit report an& olyserved. a. posaiNe, 
1,ma4esicigteth fikn.th&alance. Lw thei gen.erab fun& 
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Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's 
main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select 
one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each 
selected account, and observe that: 

The/ current Town/ Clerk/ ct/sIced/ ws,  to- u4e. the. /4.4t i:n/ our cuLdt:t workpapork We 
abtai:n ed. mcunagements,  representatizmithat the. ri4t6ng,  14,  comp/ete We.6clentified. 
the. vn.a&nv open:Lang,  account co,  the. "Controb Account". We rat.nclomly selected. 4 
adclinonal. accounts,  for tesang,  ancl. selzcted. the/ month. of] lu,te. 2022 for test-14,yr. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement 
closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

None/ af thei reconci—lizatavw selected/ ware prepare& withi:n/ 2 manth,s,  of the. 
related/ statevnent date.. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not handle 
cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); and 

None. of thei reconcaZation4,  selected/ showed/ eivi:clence. of Ct,  

boarclimanagement memlYer's,  revi:evti. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding 
for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Threei of thei selected/ recancalation,s,  showed/ reconciUng,  &tem* Duei to- the. 
lack of dates,  assoaated. with/those/ we were wnaZYle. to- cletermi:ne, the. 
ale/ of the. itemw. 

Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites 11 for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are 
prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all 
deposit sites if less than 5). 

Current management at:vice/January 2 02 3) not provi:cle. ct. Wrung,  of depasa-

 

To- our know/edge., were. pri:maray collezted. at town. hallx For a 
portion/ of the. year, th&poli:ce. department may have collected/ft:nes,. 
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5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locationsl2 and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations 
for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no 
written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and 
observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

AW dep.:Y.1,W saw/  were, selecteth We, abtaZned. the, ca4h, receipts,  journal. We. 
abtal,ne.d, aGncl,i,n4pectecl. writte,n,paUci:e,s, cvld.proceolikres,. 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

Mcvnazde4nent amerted,that oinployee,s,  clo- not sharei ca4h, clrcavork. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, unless 
another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g., pre-numbered 
receipts) to the deposit. 

Employees,  re,spanahie, for callecrov,  cash, acre, not re,spomthie, for 
prepa,r6vtglynallxi.nk, deposal,. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to the general 
ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings 
to each other and to the deposit. 

Employees,  re4poilalyle. for collecanw ccusk awe. not respowsthle. for posartg,  
collecti.on, entries,  to- the, general, ledger. Ccohie.rs,  ws,e, the, utility billZnw 
systenv to- enter coltecti.oms,, so- they do- enter collecaom,  14,1to- the, sikb1141,1,cuy 

leolgex. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, 
by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible for collecting cash, unless another 
employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

me, employee's,  respomaYlei far collecang,  cct4h, arei not respon4thlei for 
reconc12,144w. 

6. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who have 
access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal period. 

Per the, curront Town, Cieric)s,  i*Lqu,i*y of the, "rown)s,  l'Autkraunce, cujency, the, 
prior admiiivaistratiziv did. not renew the. theft 1,14444.4PGGVICe/ pOUCy. The,refore,, 
there, wci,s,  no- polky 144/effect ottlu.vt& 30, 2022. 
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7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under "Bank 
Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when selecting the 
deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain 
supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We ra.vtdomly seiected. two- clepas:6t dates,  for eaclv of the. 5 bounk. 
selecteth far procedktre #3 tkvtder "BoLnic/Rec&nctizrne above (select-1*yr the. 
vte4ct deposit date chronologicallyi.f no- deposal,  were wwwle. on. the. Giztte4( 
ra.vtdo-wthy selected. a,vtd. rouvtdowdy se/ea-14v,  au deposit multiple. deposits,  awe 
vnazie. on/the. Sa44112/ day). We. abtaZvted. supporrov,  doctkinevitati.ovi. for 9 of the. 
10 deposal,. M woof  minable/to-pray 6de. supportfor 1 deposit 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

We noted. vto- e4cceptCovw. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation to 
the deposit slip. 

We noted. vto- except-1,Om". 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

We noted. vto- e4ccepti.avw. 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within one 
week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than 
$100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

We. not-ed. no- e4ccepttovw. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

We noted. 2 deposits,  were not-posted. to-the. general /edger. 

Non-Pavroll Disbursements (excludine card purchases/pavments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases)  

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

Curront yncunagemtant caul& not-  provizle. a. /i4t6ng< We. awe fcc.vvCal.a.r with. pooft 
practice's,. 
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9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-payroll 
purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if the 
agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job 
duties are properly segregated such that: 

The.rei wow( on& Locarlavv. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing an 
order/making the purchase. 

We. (Vizi/ not receiNe. at.1,14ang-. We. noted/ no- e4cception. 144/the.poUct:e4e. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

We. not rece(Ne. at.14.4"tling-. We. noted. no- e4ccepactri. /in/ the. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files, 
unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

We. duL not recei>ve. cul,14,ttvuk. Thi4e144,44e. wow( not adzire4sed. 144.th&poUci.e4r. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to 
an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

We. GLIZ not receiNe. a. Wavy-. Th14(14,44,te. wow( not cuid,re4led. i,vv the. polix,i;e4r. 

[Note: Exceptions to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason 
Act municipality) should not be reported.] 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction population 
(excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the population is 
complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each 
transaction, and: 

obtau-ined. the/population/ Gun& yna.naz demi. k that comp/et& We. selected. 
5 GLI4ibtkilferneNtrk 

a) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and supporting 
documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by the entity. 

Curv-e,nt vnet,nagemtent wail( iknable, to. provizie. 2 out of 5 imivoice4r. We. noted. no-
e4cceptiovw on. 3 out of 5 ci,14,4x‘rsemtents< 

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic logging) 
of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Suck wifiziencei wow not reciuLred. for 1 cli4bwrsemtent Curront yna.nazjevnent 
coat& not provizl& /Yackup far 2 out of 5 d,14bursevne,nts< We. noted. no-
e4ccepao-vwfor 2 out of 5 ciaburseineints, 
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Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for 
the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the 
cards13. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

We. abtou'ined. U,savtg,  of all. card's,  and. managements,  representation. that-  the. 
114t6vuj,  complete 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were used 
during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for a 
debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

We. ra.ndomly selected/ 5 card's,  from/the. Wt. We. ra,ndomly selected. 1 ma-nth, for 
each, ca.rd.. 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel 
card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public 
officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.] 

We. observed/the, staternents,  that wem. a/vcala.ble,. Current staff were. ikna.ble,to-
locate. I out of 5 statements,. The. 4 atm:Li:WA& statements,  cq3pea,red. to- be. 
re; vi:ewed. owe eivi:denced. by marks,  Gun& 14,4ttats,. However, the. &nit—talk were 
Wegthle. i;vv somei cow's,. 

b) Observe that fmance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

W ei observe& ft:novice. cha,rgek an, 3 out of 4 statementk. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing)14. For each transaction, observe it is supported by 

UR:iv-the. monthiy statements; wei scheduled/ a.nd. tested/ all, trounsact-bovw for 
a/total of 26. Two-  out of 3 statowtents,  lincluzied/lew thoun. 10 cha.rgek. 

(1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, 

We. oNerved. that there. were Lteminefed. receipts( far alb tramacttan4,. aweiver, 
1 receipt presented. a,a support GU& not match/the. statement. 

(2)written documentation of the business/public purpose, and 

Therei woo( documentarLonv of b.u,si:nessepurpose. for 4 out of 2 6 chouves< 
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(3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only) 

The,rei werei no- meals,  chcuege,s,  linidte/te,sted/trcum,acti.ovw. 

13. For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe tile nature of the transaction and note whether management 
had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

For the. 1 receipt that GU& not match. thei stiatemient, there wail( a. howyclAvrittow 
notati.on/that the. aUfference. wow at. "gift cowci; for 88 cents,. 

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursementsl5 (excludink card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 
reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each 
selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

WPi obtotivied. the. gemmral Ledgery fi,r alb Ateui* Uientified. thaveb expemse 
accockvak, palecte4, samplei of fiNei rairnbursements; cvtth reque,sted,  related/ 
doectinenUttiovu 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those rates 
established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

One. out of fiNei reUnbursevnents,  acd•reeci. to- the. GSA rcite On& out of the. 
reAncaini,nor four volAnbursevnents,  wow le4s,  than, the. GSA ratPi. The, other threei 
reimlbursevnents,  wore. made. at at. rate. cthove the. GSA ratex 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized receipt 
that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Two- of the/ft:ye. rolAnbursemlonts,  cgvecueeci. to- Ivi relAnbursed. u46nek actual/ cost. 
One. of the/two- woof  not suppovteth by i.nvoices,  or recelptk. 

c) Observe each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for meal 
charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and other 
documentation required by written policy (procedure #1h). 

One. of the. Pve relAnbursevnents,  lino/adz& docu,vnentati.onw of thei bu4,144244( 
ptkepose Two- of the. Pve. rolAnbu,rsemtentl. 6nclucied. yneca* Nat-her of the. 
relAnburses for meals,  linclktcleth the. ncun&s,  of i:ncLIA/Ccluals,  pmeti.cipati.no, 
i;vv thei mem/kb-vet both, cgvezwed.thrbe.for one.persovv. 

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person 
receiving reimbursement. 

We. noted. no- exceptton* 
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Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and supplies, 
leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, the 
practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the 
listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Current mcuncLgeille.felt (tOtirk office Jci.vu,wuy 2023) provizled. at. lYtAt wow( 
u.nahle.to- linclucle.tev-mv date's,  cm& edLeCat-6O1,1/ Clate4e. 

a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law16 (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

We could/ prepat.rei at. u,sa v to, of vovviork fronv the. genera/. /edger but wei could. 
not cocert-cu:n. Whether thei vendors,  have contracts,  that meet thei critorizu far 
te4t6n*. 

b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law (e.g., 
Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

We caul& not completethi4eprocedure.for rect4on4(  stated. above. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms provided for such an 
amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g., if approval is 
required for any amendment, was approval documented). 

We could. vtot completethtkpraceclure for rea4on4,  stated/ cthave. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting 
invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and related payment agreed to the 
terms and conditions of the contract. 

We cou ld. not complete thi4ep ;Po-cedar& for rea4on4( stated. mbove.. 

Pavroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees and officials17 employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related paid salaries 
and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

We. abtat;tAecl. cvli4tiNtor of employees . We. selected. a/scull/A& ci.ncl/obtaZned. 
thei related/ iinformarGont We could. not cweei thei pcath rate to- thei aathorii-bed. 
ratei for three/out of flive. employee* 
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17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected under #16 
above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

For thei scunpLei selected., wei obtou'ined. thei attenciancei and. leave recorths,  for awc 
selected/pay perikyrb. 

a) Observe all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, 
sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to earn leave and do not document their 
attendance and leave. However, if the official is earning leave according to a policy and/or contract, the 
official should document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

We. noted. no-  except-Lan* 

b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or officials. 

We noted. no-  evi:dence. of supervi4or's,  app royal/for on& out of emPLoyee44 

c) Observe any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative leave 
records. 

Management caul& not provCde. the. ctkmktlati/ve. leave record/ thwk we. were. 
&ma/AR/to- observe if leave. cha.noes, were. reflected/ an/the. record's,. 

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate found within the 
personnel file. 

For two- out of fiA,e. empLoyeek, we. could/ not ag-ree. the. rate paicl/to- eivizience. of 
thei authorirbed. rate. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or officials, obtain 
related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment calculations and 
the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials' cumulative leave 
records, agree the pay rates to the employee or officials' authorized pay rates in the employee or officials' 
personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

Managemtent coder-tad/ that to- the. best of their know/edge, no- terniZnatiOn4( 
wei,-epa.14/. The. cktrrent admi,n4trationitoolc. office, 1,n/Janctary 2023. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related 
amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, workers' 
compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Current management i:ntii:cated. that the/former cuimi:ni:strationw left office. with. 
LAA4pa4:d. payroll/ taxes,. Asiaci.ated. forworha.d. not /menv faeth on,timte. cm,  eivi.d.ence& 
by notices,  from/the, IRS and/the.State of LatA,141.a.na.. 
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Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" above, 
obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

We. obtaZned. wycLacthiei ethics, clocikmentatCo-w from vitanagentent 

a) Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics 
training during the fiscal period. 

We. observed/ that the. doct,unentatian. demomtrated. that on& of the. five 
employee's,  competed. the. recpared/traZvu'ing< 

b) Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and official 
were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as applicable. 

Wei noted. no- such.paUcy chzt.no& 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, obtain supporting 
documentation, and observe State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

Management GU& not-pravizie. au 16 sang< 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting 
documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those 
required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by 
the debt covenants). 

Mcwwt.gemtent GU& not-provizle. culidstiNuk 

Fraud Notice 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting 
documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district 
attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Mmvtazjentent not-provizle. cv 16 sang< 

24. Observe the entity has posted, on its premises21 and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the 
reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

M anagement c1,14. not- provizle. Wino< 

Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

25. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We performed the 
procedure and discussed the results with management." 

W & performed. the.p racezlztre. Gun& c1/4cAmesezl.th& re,salt-s,  with. management 
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26. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if no written 
documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and observe that such backup occurred 
within the past week. If backups are stored on a physical medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups 
are encrypted before being transported. 

We.performedith&proceclure, and, d,i,sctmesedithe, re,salts,  with, vnanage,vnent. 

27. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its backups can be restored 
(if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe 
evidence that the test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We.performeclith&proced-are, and, clacumeth the, re,saltl,  with, ynanage,vnent. 

28. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and observe while management 
demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system 
and accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

W Pi perfornteththe,p roc-edam, ancl, c1/4cumed. the, re,saltl,  with. management 

Sexual Harassment 

29. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" above, 
obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe the documentation demonstrates 
each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

No- claca,mentatianv wow( provizied. for any of the. seiecte& e,inployee, s,  A new 
atzi,vntrati,owlYegan, lin/January 2023. 

30. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or in a 
conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

We noted. no- sach,paUcy posted/ or onithe. websWe4 

31. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report was dated 
on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

Current management was,  LA#LCLIYie, to- provizle. the. report. 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training requirements; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

c) Number of complaints which resulted in a fmding that sexual harassment occurred; 

d) Number of complaints in which the fmding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective action; and 

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

We were engaged by the Entity to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our engagement in 
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 
applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination 
or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on 
those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 
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We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, and 
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public 
document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Fead & Stade:se 

Ruston, Louisiana 
September 30, 2023 

98 



   

Dr. James "Spike" Harris, Mayor 
Telephone: 318-259-2385 
Fax: 318-259-4177 

TOWN OF JONESBORO 

October 2, 2023 

P. O. Box 610 
128 Allen Avenue 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 71251 

Management Response: Non-compliance with public bid law 2022-001 

Corrective Action Plan 

Upon thorough investigation and carefuI consideration of the violations, we have developed a 
comprehensive corrective action plan to address the issues at hand and prevent future 
occurrences. This plan aims to ensure compliance with the public bid law and regain the trust 
and confidence of all stakeholders involved. The key elements of our corrective action plan for 
the public bid law are as follows: 

1. Immediate Actions:  
- Cease any ongoing violations immediately. 
- Initiate a temporary suspension of any activities related to public bids until compliance is fully 
restored. 
- Notify all relevant parties, including internal stakeholders and external entities affected by the 
violations, about the corrective measures being implemented. 

2. Process Improvement:  
- Review and revise internal policies, procedures, and protocols to align with the requirements of 
the public bid law. 
-Establish clear guidelines and standardized processes for conducting public bids, ensuring 
transparency, fairness, and equal opportunities for all participants. 
- Strengthen internal controls and oversight mechanisms to prevent similar violations in the 
future. 

3. Training and Education:  
- Provide comprehensive training programs to all employees involved in the public bid process, 
emphasizing their responsibilities, legal obligations, and the importance of compliance. 
- Engage external experts or legal counsel to conduct specialized training sessions to enhance 
employees" understanding of public bid law and its implications. 

4. Monitoring and Compliance:  
- Implement a robust monitoring system to regularly assess compliance with the public bid law. 
- Conduct internal audits and reviews to evaluate adherence to the revised policies and 
procedures. 



- Reinforce reporting mechanisms to encourage employees to report any potential violations 
promptly and without fear of retaliation. 

5. Corrective Measures:  
- Apply appropriate disciplinary actions against individuals responsible for the violations, in 
accordance with company policies and applicable laws. 
- Collaborate with legal advisors to determine any necessary restitution or remedies required by 
the affected parties 
- Establish a corrective action tracking system to ensure the timely completion of all necessary 
remedial actions. 

6. Communication and Transparencv:  
-Maintain open lines of communication with all stakeholders, providing regular updates on the 
progress of the corrective action plan. 
- Foster a culture of transparency and accountability within the organization, encouraging 
employees to uphold the highest standards of ethics and compliance. 

We understand the seriousness of these violations and are fully committed to rectifying the 
situation. Our goal is to prevent the recurrence of such violations and rebuild trust among all 
parties involved. We will diligently implement this corrective action plan, monitor its 
effectiveness, and make any necessary adjustments along the way. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Failure in internal control over purchasing 2022-002 

To effectively manage internal control of purchasing and ensure compliance with the required 
purchase orders, signatures, and proper filing, here is a corrective action plan: 

1.We will start by reviewing our current purchasing policies and procedures. Ensure they 
clearly outline the steps and controls required for each purchasing transaction, including the use 
of purchase orders, required signatures, and proper filing. 

2. Communicate Expectations: Communicate the updated policies and procedures to all 
relevant employees involved in the purchasing process. Emphasize the importance of adhering to 
the controls and the role they play in maintaining internal control. 

3. Training and Education: Provide training sessions or workshops to educate employees on a 
newly implemented online purchasing system (Procurify) and the correct use of purchase orders, 
obtaining authorized signatures, and the importance of filing them with invoices. This will help 
ensure everyone understands the processes and their responsibilities. 

4. Purchase Order System: Implement a purchase order system (Procurify) that requires 
authorized personnel to approve and generate purchase orders. This system should track and 
record details such as the vendor, quantity, price, and authorized signatures. 

5. Segregation of Duties: Establish a clear segregation of duties within the purchasing process. 
Assign different individuals to be responsible for creating purchase orders, obtaining signatures, 



and filing them with invoices. This helps prevent any single individual from having complete 
control over the entire process. 

6. Regular Auditing: Conduct regular internal audits of the purchasing process, This includes 
reviewing a sample of purchase orders, verifying signatures, and ensuring proper filing. Audits 
help identify any gaps or non-compliance issues, allowing you to take corrective actions 
promptly. 

7. Document Retention: Implement a centralized and organized system for storing and retaining 
purchase orders, invoices, and related documents. This ensures easy access for future references 
and facilitates proper record-keeping. 

8. Monitor and Enforce Compliance: Continuously monitor the purchasing process and 
enforce compliance with the established controls. Regularly remind employees of the importance 
of following the procedures and address any non-compliance issues promptly. 

The goal of these corrective actions is to strengthen internal controls and ensure transparency and 
accountability in the purchasing process. By implementing these measures, we can mitigate risks 
and maintain a smooth and efficient purchasing system. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Reduce Overtime Pay 2022-003 

To reduce overtime and double overtime pay for employees in the Town of Jonesboro, here is a 
corrective action plan: 

1.Analyze Workload and Staffing Levels: Conduct a SWOT analysis and thorough analysis of 
the workload in different departments and assess whether the existing staffing levels are 
adequate. Identify any areas where workload imbalances or understaffing may be leading to 
excessive overtime. 

2. Workforce Planning and Scheduling: Develop a comprehensive workforce planning and 
scheduling strategy. This involves creating accurate staffing forecasts, aligning work schedules 
to demand, and implementing efficient shift rotations to minimize overtime needs. Implement 
contracting agencies on an as needed basis to assist in reducing the time employees spend in 
emergency situations and instances where town employees may or may not have the ability to 
solve complicated issues with water and sewer. 

3. Improve Time and Attendance Tracking: Implement a reliable time and attendance tracking 
system that accurately records employee work hours, including start and end tithes, breaks, and 
time off. This will help identify instances of unnecessary overtime and double overtime. 

4. Prioritize Work Allocation: Ensure work is allocated efficiently and evenly across 
employees. Distribute workload based on skills, availability, and workload capacity, avoiding 
situations where certain employees consistently have to work overtime while others do not. 



5. Cross-Train Employees: Cross-train employees across different departments or functions to 
create a more flexible workforce. This allows for better resource utilization and minimizes the 
need for overtime when specific individuals are unavailable or overwhelmed with work. 

6. Implement Time-Off Policies: Encourage and enforce the use of accrued vacation time, 
personal days, and other time-off benefits. This helps employees take regular breaks and reduces 
the need for overtime due to burnout or excessive work hours. 

7. Review Work Processes and Efficiency: Evaluate work processes and identify areas where 
inefficiencies or bottlenecks may be leading to overtime. Streamline workflows, eliminate 
unnecessary steps, and optimize resource allocation to maximize productivity. 

8. Performance Management and Accountability: Regularly review employee performance 
and address any productivity or work ethic issues that may contribute to excessive overtime. 
Provide feedback, training, and support to improve performance and reduce the need for 
overtime. 

9. Communication and Employee Engagement: Foster open communication channels with 
employees to understand their concerns, ideas, and suggestions for reducing overtime. Engage 
employees in the decision-making process and create a supportive work environment that 
encourages efficiency and work-life balance. 

10.Monitoring and Reporting: Continuously monitor and analyze overtime data to identify 
trends, patterns, and areas requiring further attention. Generate regular reports to track progress 
and hold departments accountable for managing overtime effectively. 

Implementing these corrective actions requires collaboration and support from management and 
employees alike. By addressing workload imbalances, improving scheduling, and fostering a 
culture of efficiency, we will reduce overtime and double overtime pay while ensuring the well-
being and productivity of our workforce. 

MANAGEM.ENT RESPONSE: Utility Billing Procedures 2022-004 

To improve utility billing procedures and address the mentioned issues, here is a corrective 
action plan: 

1.Meter Reading Efficiency: Implement a more efficient meter reading process to ensure 
accurate and timely readings. This may involve hiring and/or training employees on proper meter 
reading and investing in a system that uses mobile applications to streamline data collection. 

2. Meter Location and Accessibility: Conduct a comprehensive audit to locate all customer 
meters and ensure they are easily accessible for reading. Address any obstructions, overgrown 
vegetation, or other barriers that may impede meter access. 



3. Proper Cutoff Procedures: Establish clear and standardized procedures for cutoffs when 
customers fail to pay their bills. Train utility staff in these procedures to ensure consistent 
implementation while adhoing to local regulations and customer rights. 

4. Updated Meter Software: Upgrade the meter software to a modern and robust system that 
improves accuracy, data management, and billing efficiency. This will help minimize errors and 
streamline the billing process. 

5. Timely Billing and Invoicing: Implement a strict schedule for billing and ensure that bills are 
generated and mailed on time. This may involve automating the billing process or using software 
that allows for batch processing and timely invoicing. 

6. Meter Maintenance and Calibration: Regularly inspect and maintain water meters to ensure 
accurate readings. Establish a calibration schedule and promptly replace or repair any faulty 
meters to prevent billing inaccuracies. 

7. Customer Communication and Education: Enhance customer communication regarding 
billing procedures, cutoff policies, and meter reading schedules. Provide clear and concise 
instructions on how to read meters, report issues, and pay bills. Educate customers on water 
conservation practices to help manage their usage more effectively. 

8. Quality Assurance and Auditing: Establish a quality assurance program to periodically audit 
billing processes and meter readings. This will help identify any discrepancies, errors, or areas 
that require improvement. Implement corrective measures based on the audit findings. 

9. Staff Training and Development: Provide comprehensive training to utility staff on meter 
reading techniques, proper cutoff procedures, software usage, and customer service skills. 
Regularly update their knowledge and skills through workshops, seminars, or online training 
programs. 

10.Performance Monitoring and Feedback: Implement a system to monitor and track billing 
accuracy, timeliness, and customer satisfaction. Provide regular feedback to staff, acknowledge 
their achievements, and address any performance issues or areas needing improvement. 

By implementing these corrective actions, you can enhance the efficiency, accuracy, and 
customer satisfaction of your utility billing procedures. Regular monitoring, feedback, and 
continuous improvement efforts will help ensure a well-managed and reliable billing process. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Non-Compliance with Budget Act 2022-005 

1. Enhance Meeting Minutes: To make minutes easier to follow, we will use a structured 
format for recording meeting minutes. Use clear headings and bullet points to highlight key 
discussions, decisions made, and action items related to the budget. Make sure to include any 
budget-related topics discussed during the meeting. 



2. Timely Introduction of Budget: To ensure the budget is introduced in a timely manner, we 
will establish a clear timeline and deadline for the budget preparation process. This will help 
streamline the workflow and ensure that all necessary steps are completed on time. Assign 
specific responsibilities to individuals and/or departments involved in the budgeting process to 
ensure accountability. 

3. Implement Budget Message: A budget message is an important tool for communicating the 
goals, priorities, and financial outlook of the budget. Ensure that a comprehensive and well-
structured budget message is prepared and shared with all relevant stakeholders. This will 
provide a clear understanding of the budget's purpose and help garner support for its 
implementation. 

4. Reflect Budget Hearing in Minutes: It's crucial to accurately reflect any budget-related 
discussions and decisions made during budget hearings in the meeting minutes. Assign a 
designated note-taker who can focus on capturing these specific details. This will help ensure 
transparency and accountability in the budgeting process. 

5.Adopt Budgets for Revenue Funds: Revenue funds should have adopted budgets to 
effectively manage and track financial resources. Review the current process and ensure that all 
revenue funds have clearly defined budgets in place. This will help monitor revenue inflows, 
allocate resources appropriately, and maintain compliance with the budget act. 

These are just initial suggestions to help guide us in the right direction. It may also be beneficial 
to consult with relevant stakeholders, such as financial experts or budget analysts, to tailor these 
actions to our specific situation. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Financial Statements Issued After Due Date 2022-006 

I. Clear Communication of Authority and Responsibilities: Ensure that all employees 
involved in the financial statement preparation process are aware of their roles, responsibilities, 
and reporting lines. Clearly communicate the importance of timely financial reporting and the 
consequences of missing deadlines. This will help foster accountability and ensure everyone 
understands their contribution to the process. 

2. Internal Control System Design: Review and enhance our internal control system to include 
proper monitoring, supervision, and review mechanisms. Implement checks and balances 
throughout the financial reporting process to identify any delays or bottlenecks. Regularly assess 
the effectiveness of these controls and adjust as needed to streamline the process and ensure 
timely reporting. 

3. Active Management Presence and Supervision: Management should actively monitor and 
supervise the financial statement preparation process. Regularly check on the progress, identify 
any issues or delays, and provide necessary support to overcome obstacles. This will help keep 
the process on track and ensure that any potential delays are addressed promptly. 



4. Engage a Certified Public Accountant (CPA): Engage a CPA firm to monitor our 
accounting and control procedures. They can provide an independent assessment of our financial 
reporting process and suggest improvements. Additionally, having a CPA involved can help 
ensure compliance with accounting standards and provide valuable insights for timely financial 
reporting. 

5.Allow CPA Access for Year-End Adjustments: To facilitate timely financial reporting, 
provide the CPA firm with access to your accounting records and systems before the end of the 
fiscal year. This will allow them to complete necessary year-end adjustments and ensure that the 
financial statements are ready for issuance within the required timeframe. 

These actions are meant to guide us in developing a corrective action plan. We will tailor them to 
our specific organizational needs and seek professional advice as necessary from the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor, CPA Firm, and auditors. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Lack of Segregation of Duties 2022-007 

1.Review and Update Policies and Procedures: Evaluate your existing policies and 
procedures related to financial transactions and segregation of duties. Ensure that they are 
comprehensive, up-to-date, and aligned with industry best practices. Clearly define roles and 
responsibilities, including who can and cannot take payments, and establish controls to prevent 
theft, misappropriation of funds, and fraud. 

2. Segregate Financial Duties: Identify areas where segregation of duties is lacking and develop 
a plan to separate those duties among different personnel. Assign specific responsibilities to 
different individuals to create a system of checks and balances. For example, ensure that the 
employee responsible for receiving payments is not the same person responsible for recording or 
reconciling those payments. 

3. Train Employees: Provide comprehensive training to all employees involved in financial 
transactions. Educate them on the importance of segregation of duties, the risks associated with 
not following these practices, and the impact on the organization's financial health. Train 
employees in their specific roles and responsibilities, emphasizing the need for collaboration and 
adherence to established procedures. 

4. Seek Advice from a CPA: Engage a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to provide guidance 
and expertise in establishing effective segregation of duties. They can assess our current 
processes, identify any weaknesses, and provide recommendations for strengthening controls. A 
CPA can also help ensure compliance with accounting standards and regulatory requirements. 

5. Implement Monitoring and Oversight: Establish a system of monitoring and oversight to 
regularly review and assess adherence to segregation of duties policies and procedures. Assign a 
designated individual or team to monitor and evaluate financial transactions, ensuring that 
segregation of duties is being followed consistently. Regularly review internal controls and make 
adjustments as necessary to enhance effectiveness. 



6. Regular Internal and External Audits: Conduct internal audits periodically to assess the 
effectiveness of segregation of duties controls and identify any potential vulnerabilities. 
Additionally, consider engaging external auditors to perform independent reviews. Their 
expertise can provide an objective assessment of our organization's financial processes and help 
identify any gaps or areas for improvement. 

Implementing a strong segregation of duties framework requires ongoing commitment and 
vigilance. Continuously assess and improve our processes to mitigate risks and safeguard our 
organization's financial resources. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Omitted Supplementary Information Required by State 
Law 2022-008 

1.Review state laws and regulations: Conduct a comprehensive review of the relevant state 
laws and regulations that govern the reporting requirements for court costs, fines, and fees. 
Identify the specific information that needs to be included in the reports and any guidelines or 
templates provided by the legislative auditor. 

2. Develop a uniform reporting format: Based on the requirements outlined in the state laws 
and regulations, develop a standardized reporting format for local and state entities that assess, 
collect, or receive revenue from court costs, fines, and fees. This format should include all the 
necessary supplementary information as specified by the legislative auditor. 

3. Consult with stakeholders: Engage with relevant stakeholders, such as local government 
officials, court administrators, state agencies, and the legislative audito?s office itself, to seek 
their input and feedback on the proposed uniform reporting format. Consider any specific 
concerns or requirements they may have and incorporate them into the format to ensure 
compatibility and ease of implementation. 

4. Communicate the reporting requirements: Clearly communicate the revised reporting 
requirements to all local and state entities responsible for assessing, collecting, or receiving 
revenue from court costs, fines, and fees. Provide detailed instructions on how to use the uniform 
reporting format and any accompanying guidelines or documentation. 

5. Training and support: Conduct training sessions or workshops to educate the personnel 
responsible for preparing the reports on the revised reporting requirements. Offer support and 
assistance to address any questions or challenges they may encounter during the transition to the 
new format. 

6. Internal review and validation: Implement an internal review process to ensure the accuracy 
and completeness of the reports before they are submitted to the legislative auditor. Assign 
designated personnel or a dedicated team to review the reports, verify the inclusion of all 
required supplementary information, and validate the data provided. 



7.Periodic audits: Conduct periodic audits to verify compliance with the reporting requirements 
and assess the accuracy of the reported information. These audits can be performed internally or 
by an independent external auditor. Use the audit findings to identify any areas of improvement 
and take corrective actions as needed. 

8.Continuous improvement: Establish a feedback mechanism to gather input from 
stakeholders and entities responsible for reporting court costs, fines, and fees. Regularly review 
the reporting process and format to identify any potential enhancements or modifications that can 
improve the accuracy, efficiency, and effectiveness of the reporting system. 

By implementing this corrective plan, we can develop a uniform reporting format that satisfies 
the requirements of the state laws and regulations. This will ensure consistent and accurate 
reporting of court costs, fines, and fees, and facilitate compliance with the legislative auditor's 
requi rements. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Accounting Errors 2022-009 

1.Identify and Document Errors: Conduct a thorough review of our accounting records to 
identify any errors or discrepancies. Document each error, categorizing them based on their 
nature (e.g., balancing, classification, revenue recognition, etc.). 

2.Balancing General Ledgers: Review the general ledgers for each account to identify any 
imbalances. Trace and cross-reference transactions to ensure they have been recorded accurately. 
Correct any discrepancies and ensure that the general ledgers are balanced. 

3. Rectify Beginning Equity and Prior Year End Accrual Balances: Review the beginning 
equity and prior year end accrual balances to ensure they are accurately recorded. Investigate any 
discrepancies and make necessary adjustments to bring them into alignment with the correct 
figures. 

4.Correct Revenue Classification Errors: Review revenue transactions to identify any errors 
in classification. Ensure that revenue is properly categorized based on the nature of the income 
(e.g., sales, services, etc.). Make necessary adjustments to correct any misclassified revenue. 

5.Record Donated Vehicles: If donated vehicles have not been properly recorded, ensure that 
they are accounted for accurately. Determine the fair market value of each donated vehicle and 
record it as revenue or an asset, as appropriate. Document the details of each donation for future 
reference and audit purposes. 

6.Ensure Proper Fund Transfers: Review all fund transfer transactions to ensure they are 
dated properly. Verify that funds are transferred between accounts in accordance with relevant 
policies and procedures. Make any necessary corrections to ensure accurate recording of fund 
transfers. 



7.Accurate Fund Recording: Review the recording of funds received and disbursed to ensure 
they are accurately recorded. Verify that all transactions are properly classified and allocated to 
the correct accounts. Make any necessary adjustments to achieve accurate fund recording. 

8. Identify and Correct Earned Revenue: Review revenue transactions to identify any 
instances where revenue has been improperly recognized or deferred. Ensure that revenue is 
recognized in accordance with applicable accounting standards and policies. Make any necessary 
adjustments to properly recognize earned revenue. 

9. Implement Internal Controls: Enhance internal controls to prevent future accounting errors. 
Establish procedures for regular review and reconciliation of accounts, segregation of duties, and 
double-checking of transactions. Regularly train and educate accounting staff to ensure they 
understand proper accounting practices and procedures. 

10.Regularly Monitor and Audit: Implement regular monitoring and auditing processes to 
identify and rectify any new accounting errors promptly. Conduct periodic internal audits and 
engage external auditors to provide an objective assessment of your financial records and 
processes. 

By following this corrective action plan, we can address accounting errors, ensure accurate 
financial reporting, and establish robust internal controls to prevent future errors. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Capitol Assets Lack of Controls 2022-010 

1.Adjust Depreciation Schedule to Physical Inventory: Conduct a physical inventory of all 
capital assets, including vehicles, equipment, and property. Compare the results to the existing 
depreciation schedule to identify any discrepancies. Make necessary adjustments to the 
depreciation schedule to reflect the accurate value and condition of each asset. 

2.Audit Titles and Insurance Coverage: Review the titles and insurance coverage for all 
vehicles to ensure they are properly documented and insured. Verify that the ownership of each 
vehicle is accurately recorded, and that adequate insurance coverage is in place. Rectify any 
discrepancies or gaps in documentation or coverage. 

3.Evaluate Written Policies and Procedures: Review existing policies and procedures related 
to capital assets. Evaluate their effectiveness in ensuring proper controls, accountability, and 
maintenance of assets. Identify any gaps or areas for improvement. 

4. Design Effective Policies and Procedures: Based on the evaluation, design or update written 
policies and procedures for capital asset management. Ensure that they clearly define the 
responsibilities, processes, and controls necessary for the effective management, tracking, and 
maintenance of assets. Include clear guidelines for acquiring, disposing, and maintaining assets. 

5.Communicate Requirements, Policies, and Procedures: Clearly communicate the revised 
or newly developed policies and procedures to all appropriate personnel involved in capital asset 



management. Provide training and guidance on their implementation and ensure that employees 
understand their roles and responsibilities. 

6.Establish Controls for Compliance: Implement controls to monitor compliance with the 
policies and procedures. This may include regular audits, reconciliations, and reviews of capital 
asset records. Assign responsibility to specific individuals or departments for the oversight and 
enforcement of the controls. 

7. Periodic Review and Update: Regularly review and update the capital asset policies and 
procedures to ensure they remain relevant and effective. Consider changes in regulations, 
technology, or organizational needs that may require modifications to the existing controls. 

8.Document and Retain Records: Maintain proper documentation of all capital asset-related 
activities, including acquisitions, disposals, maintenance, and insurance coverage. Ensure that 
records are organized, easily accessible, and retained for the required period as per legal anti 
regulatory requirements. 

9. Continuous Training and Education: Provide ongoing training and education to employees 
involved in capital asset management. This will help them stay updated on best practices, 
regulatory changes, and new technologies relevant to asset control and management. 

10.Regular Internal Audits: Conduct regular internal audits of capital asset management 
processes to identify any weaknesses or non-compliance. Engage external auditors if necessary 
to provide an independent assessment of controls and asset management practices. 

By implementing this corrective action plan, we can enhance controls over capital assets, ensure 
compliance with regulations, and mitigate the risk of mismanagement or loss of valuable assets. 

MANGEMENT RESPONSE: No Fraud or Theft Bond or Insurance Policy 2022-011 

1.Conduct a Risk Assessment: Assess the risks associated with potential fraud or theft within 
the municipality. Identify vulnerabilities and areas where the lack of insurance coverage poses 
the greatest risk. 

2. Research Insurance Options: Research and identify insurance providers that offer fraud or 
theft coverage specifically tailored to municipalities. Compare different policies, coverage limits, 
and premiums to select the most suitable option for your municipality's needs. 

3.Obtain Fraud or Theft Insurance Policy: Work with the selected insurance provider to 
obtain a fraud or theft insurance policy that adequately covers the municipality. Ensure the 
policy includes appropriate coverage limits and provisions. 

4. Communicate Policy to Relevant Personnel: Communicate the details of the fraud or theft 
insurance policy to all relevant personnel within the municipality. Provide a clear understanding 
of its purpose, coverage, and any specific requirements or procedures. 



5.Train Employees on Fraud Prevention: Provide training and education to employees on 
fraud prevention, detection, and reporting. Educate them on the importance of adhering to ethical 
standards, recognizing red flags, and reporting suspicious activities. 

6. Implement Internal Controls: Establish strong internal controls to prevent and detect fraud 
or theft. This may include segregation of duties, regular reconciliations, independent reviews, 
and mandatory leave policies. Ensure that these controls are documented and regularly reviewed 
for effectiveness. 

7.Conduct Background Checks: Perform thorough background checks on employees with 
access to sensitive financial information or assets. This can help identify any history of 
fraudulent activities and minimize the risk of internal theft. 

8. Implement Whistleblower Program: Establish a confidential reporting mechanism, such as 
a whistleblower program, to encourage employees and citizens to report suspected fraud or theft. 
Ensure that all reports are promptly investigated, and appropriate actions are taken. 

9.Regularly Review and Update Policies: Periodically review and update the fraud or theft 
insurance policy, internal controls, and fraud prevention procedures. Stay informed about 
emerging fraud trends and adjust our measures accordingly to stay ahead of potential risks. 

10.Engage External Auditors: Engage external auditors to conduct periodic assessments of our 
municipality's internal controls and fraud prevention measures. Their independent review can 
provide valuable insights and recommendations for further improvement. 

By implementing this corrective action plan, we can mitigate the risk of fraud or theft within the 
municipality and ensure that you have adequate insurance coverage in place to protect against 
potential losses. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Bills Paid Late 2022-012 

1.Identify Critical Services: Identify the critical services that need to be paid for on time, such 
as utility bills, emergency services, healthcare providers, or essential suppliers. Prioritize these 
payments to ensure their uninterrupted provision. 

2.Establish a Payment Schedule: Create a payment schedule or calendar that clearly outlines 
the due dates for each critical service bill. This will help you stay organized and ensure timely 
payments. 

3.Review Cash Flow: Regularly review your municipality's cash flow to ensure that sufficient 
funds are available to cover the payment of critical service bills. Adjust your payment schedule if 
necessary to align with cash availability. 

4.Automate Payments: Set up automated payment systems or direct debit arrangements with 
critical service providers. This will help streamline the payment process and minimize the chance 
of missing a payment deadline. 



5. Centralize Bill Management: Centralize the management of critical service bills to a 
dedicated department or individual. This will ensure that bills are promptly received, recorded, 
and processed for payment. 

6. Implement Internal Controls: Establish internal controls to prevent delays in bill payment. 
This may include requiring appropriate approvals before making payments and conducting 
periodic reviews to identify any bottlenecks in the payment process. 

7. Monitor Due Dates: Regularly monitor the due dates of critical service bills to ensure they 
are paid on time. Use reminders or notifications to alert responsible individuals of impending 
deadlines. 

8. Communicate with Service Providers: Maintain open communication with critical service 
providers. In case of any financial constraints or potential delays in payment, proactively 
communicate with them to find alternative solutions or negotiate payment terms. 

9. Monitor Accounts Payable: Implement a system to monitor accounts payable to ensure that 
critical service bills are not overlooked or missed. Regularly reconcile accounts payable records 
with payment receipts to identify any discrepancies. 

10.Assess and Improve: Continuously assess the effectiveness of your bill payment process and 
make improvements as necessary. Seek feedback from relevant stakeholders and consider 
implementing technological solutions that can streamline the payment process and improve 
efficiency. 

By implementing this corrective action plan, we can ensure that bills for critical services are paid 
in a timely manner, maintaining a good relationship with service providers and ensuring 
uninterrupted provision of essential services to the municipality. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: Authorized Pay not Documented 2022-013 

1.Review Current Policies: Conduct a thorough review of current policies and procedures 
related to authorizing and documenting pay rates, Identify any gaps or deficiencies that may have 
contributed to the issue. 

2. Revise Policies: Update policies to include clear guidelines on how pay rates should be 
authorized and documented. Specify the roles and responsibilities of personnel involved in the 
process and outline the required documentation for each step. 

3. Communicate Policy Changes: Clearly communicate the revised policies to all relevant 
personnel. Provide training sessions or workshops to ensure that everyone understands the new 
procedures and their role in authorizing and documenting pay rates. 

4. Standardize Documentation: Develop standardized templates or forms for documenting 
authorized pay rates. Ensure that these templates capture all necessary information, such as the 



date of authorization, the authorizing personnel's name and position, and any supporting 
documentation required. 

5. Establish Approval Workflow: Implement an approval workflow that clearly outlines the 
steps and individuals involved in the authorization process. This may include multiple levels of 
approval, depending on the pay rate or position. 

6. Provide Training: Conduct training sessions to educate personnel on the proper procedures 
for authorizing and documenting pay rates. Emphasize the importance of accuracy, consistency, 
and compliance with the revised policies. 

7. Monitor Compliance: Regularly monitor and evaluate compliance with the revised policies 
and procedures. Conduct periodic audits to ensure that pay rates are being properly authorized 
and documented. 

8. Address Non-Compliance: If any instances of non-compliance are identified, take 
appropriate corrective actions. This may include additional training, reassigning responsibilities, 
or disciplinary measures, depending on the severity of the non-compliance. 

9. Document Retention: Establish a system for securely storing and retaining all documentation 
related to authorized pay rates. Ensure that these records are easily accessible for future reference 
or audits. 

10.Continuous Improvement: Continuously evaluate and improve your policies and 
procedures based on feedback and lessons learned. Regularly review the effectiveness of the 
corrective actions taken and adjust as necessary. 

By implementing this corrective action plan, we can ensure that authorized pay rates are properly 
documented, reducing the risk of errors, discrepancies, or unauthorized payments. This will help 
maintain transparency, accountability, and compliance within your organization. 

. Spike arris 
Ma or 
Town of Jonesboro 
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